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BOSCH & 
STATHAM 

Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen Town 
of Jonesboro, Louisiana 

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for The Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on conducting the engagement in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, however, we were not able to 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. 

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion 

Due to the nature and quantity of our audit findings, we were not able to accept written representations from 
management as required by generally accepted auditing standards. Additionally, management elected to omit 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements, and the disclosures required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Disclaimer of Opinion 

Because of the significance of the matters described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion" paragraph, we have not 
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for audit opinions. Accordingly, we do not 
express opinions on the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph. 

Melissa Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
609 North Trenton Street, Ruston, Louisiana 71270 • Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements - 2018 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the information listed below to 
supplement the basic financial statements. 

• Management's Discussion and Analysis 
• Budgetary Comparison Information 
• Schedules of Employer's Share ofNet Pension Liability 
• Schedules of Employer Contributions to Retirement Systems 

Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Management chose not to present 
Management's Discussion and Analysis. Because of the significance of the matters described in the "Basis for 
Disclaimer of Opinion" paragraph, it is inappropriate to and we do not express an opinion on the required 
supplementary information referred to above. 

Other Information 

We were engaged to conduct an audit for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town of Jonesboro's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Compensation Paid Councilpersons 
and the Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Because of the significance of 
the matters described in the "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion" paragraph, it is inappropriate to and we do not express 
an opinion on the schedules referred to above. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 2, 2020, on our 
consideration of the Town of Jonesboro's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an engagement in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of 
Jonesboro's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

Ruston, Louisiana 
April 2, 2020 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement A 

Statement of Net Position 
As of June 30, 2018 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total 

Assets 

Cash and equivalents 

Investments 

Accounts receivable 

Inventory 

Cash and equivalents - restricted 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

$ 406,620 

190,677 

972 

1,717,940 

$ 28,093 

34,340 

74,009 

25,621 

659,789 

6,917,924 

$ 434,713 

34,340 

264,686 

26,593 

659,789 

8,635,864 

Total Assets 2,316,209 7,739,776 10,055,985 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Pension 560,138 122,151 682,289 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 560,138 122,151 682,289 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Cash overdraft 

Payroll liabilities 

Customer meter deposits 

Current portion of long-term liabilities 

Noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities 

44,201 

71,022 

33,836 

1,673,287 

53,012 

94,766 

182,294 

31,059 

2,444,066 

97,213 

165,788 

33,836 

182,294 

31,059 

4,117,353 

Total Liabilities 1,822,346 2,805,197 4,627,543 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Pension 133,946 12,361 146,307 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 133,946 12,361 146,307 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

1,717,940 

705,241 

(1,503,128) 

4,435,564 

182,294 

426,511 

6,153,504 

887,535 

(1,076,617) 

Total Net Position $ 920,053 $ 5,044,369 $ 5,964,422 

3 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement B 

Functions/Programs 
Primary government 

Governmental activities 
General government 

Fire 

Police 

Sanitation 
Highways and streets 

Total governmental 
activities 

Business-type activities 
Water and sewer 

Total primary government 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

General Revenues 
Taxes: 

Major Funds Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 

Expenses 
Charges for 

Services 
Operating Grants 
and Contributions 

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities 

Total 

$ 867,748 

438,413 

529,163 

127,604 
1,262,255 

$ 324,124 

52,712 

$ 556 

100 

$ $ (543,068) 

(438,313) 

(476,451) 

(127,604) 
(1,262,255) 

$ $ (543,068) 

(438,313) 

(476,451) 

(127,604) 
(1,262,255) 

3,225,183 376,836 656 (2,847,691) _ (2,847,691) 

1,640,619 880,822 (759,797) (759,797) 
$ 4,865,802 $ 1,257,658 $ 656 $ (2,847,691) (759,797) (3,607,488) 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 314,714 - 314,714 
Sales taxes 1,767,511 - 1,767,511 
Franchise taxes 161,963 - 161,963 
Other taxes 1,931 - 1,931 

Licenses 87,793 - 87,793 

Intergov emm ental 90,494 - 90,494 
Investment earnings 693 - 693 
Rental income (14,902) - (14,902) 
Other revenue 56,752 60,027 116,779 

Operating ttansfers (423,696) 423,696 -
Total general revenues and ttansfers 2,043,253 483,723 2,526,976 

Change in net position (804,438) (276,074) (1,080,512) 
Net position- June 30, 2017 1,724,494 5,320,444 7,044,938 
Net position - June 30, 2018 $ 920,056 $ 5,044,370 $ 5,964,426 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement C 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
As of June 30. 2018 

Special Revenue Funds 

General Fund 
Fire Ad 

Valorem Tax 
Street Ad 

Valorem Tax 
Street Sales 

Tax Total 

Assets 
Cash and equivalents $ 342,681 $ $ $ 63,939 $ 406,620 
Accounts receivable 114,156 - - 76,521 190,677 

Inventory 972 - - - 972 

Total Assets 457,809 - - 140,460 598,269 

Liabilities & Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 44,201 $ $ $ $ 44,201 

Cash overdraft - 23,808 47,214 - 71,022 

Payroll liabilities 33,836 - - - 33,836 

Total Liabilities 78,037 23,808 47,214 - 149,059 

Fund balances: 

Nonspendable, reported in: 

Special revenue fund 27,813 - - - 27,813 

Restricted, reported in: 

Special revenue fund - - - 140,460 140,460 

Unassigned, reported in: 
General revenue fund 351,956 (23,808) (47,214) - 280,934 

Total Fund Balances 379,769 (23,808) (47,214) 140,460 449,207 

Total Liabilities and Fund $ 457,806 $ $ $ 140,460 $ 598,266 

5 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement D 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
As of June 30. 2018 

Total Fund Balances at June 30, 2018 - Governmental Funds (Statement C) $ 449,207 

Total Net Position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Position (Statement A) are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 1 717 940 
therfore, are not reported in governmental funds, net of depreciation. ' ' 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Net pension liability (1,673,287) 

Deferred outflows of resources 560,138 

Deferred inflows of resources (133,946) 

Net Position at June 30.2018 $ 920.052 

6 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement E 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax 

Franchise tax 

Sales tax 

Other tax 

Licenses and permits 

Operating grant 

Intergovernmental 

Fines, forfeitures, and court costs 

Rent, royalty, and commission 
Charges for services 

Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 

Current: 

General government 

Public safety 

Police 

Fire 

Streets 

Sanitation 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Special Revenue Funds 

General Fund 
Fire Ad Street Ad Street Sales 

Total General Fund Valorem Tax Valorem Tax Tax Total 

$ 126,839 $ 114,475 $ 73,399 $ $ 314,713 

161,963 - - - 161,963 

883,754 - - 883,758 1,767,512 

1,931 - - - 1,931 

87,793 - - - 87,793 

556 100 - - 656 

90,494 - - - 90,494 

52,662 - - - 52,662 

(14,902) - - - (14,902) 

324,174 - - - 324,174 

14,540 - - - 14,540 

1,729,804 114,575 73,399 883,758 2,801,536 

583,178 583,178 

529,163 _ _ _ 529,163 

389,298 - - - 389,298 

1,221,042 - - - 1,221,042 

127,604 - - - 127,604 

5,940 - - - 5,940 

2,856,225 - - - 2,856,225 

(1,126,421) 114,575 73,399 883,758 (54,689) 

7 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement E 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

Special Revenue Funds 

General Fund 
Fire Ad 

Valorem Tax 
Street Ad 

Valorem Tax 
Street Sales 

Tax Total 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Interest earnings 6 - - 686 692 
Proceeds from the sale of fixed 
assets 

3,820 - - - 3,820 

Operating transfers 1,310,886 (136,009) (140,653) (1,457,920) (423,696) 
Total other financing sources 
(uses) 

Net changes in fund balances 

1,314,712 (136,009) (140,653) (1,457,234) (419,184) 
Total other financing sources 
(uses) 

Net changes in fund balances 188,291 (21,434) (67,254) (573,476) (473,873) 

Fund balances - June 30, 2017 191,479 (2,374) 20,040 713,935 923,080 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 $ 379,770 $ (23,808) $ (47,214) $ 140,459 $ 449,207 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement F 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Funds Balances to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

Total net change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Statement E) $ (473,874) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets capitalized over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlay differs from depreciation for the period. 

Depreciation (164,853) 

Capital outlay 5,940 

Net pension liability decrease (increase) (171,653) 

Change in net position of governmental activities (Statement B) $ (804,440) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement G 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund 
As of June 30. 2018 

Proprietary Fund -
Enterprise Funds 

Utility Fund 

Assets 
Current Assets: 

Cash and equivalents 

Accounts receivable 

Inventory 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 

Cash and equivalents - restricted 
Investments - restricted 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 
Total Noncurrent Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Pension 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Cash overdraft 

Current portion of long-term liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Customer meter deposits 

Long-Term Liabilities: 

Long-term liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Pension 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

28,093 
74,009 
25.621 

127.723 

659,789 
34,340 

6.917.924 
7.612.053 
7.739.776 

122.151 

122.151 

53,012 
94,766 
31.059 

178.837 

182.294 

2.444.066 

2.805.197 

12.361 
12.361 

4,435,564 
182,294 
426.511 

5.044.369 

10 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement H 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

Operating Revenues 

Charges for services 

Miscellaneous income 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Personnel services 

Supplies 

Utilities 

Repairs and maintenance 

Contractural services 

Miscellaneous 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 

Miscellaneous revenue 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers 

Total transfers 

Change in net position 

Total Net Position - June 30, 2017 

Total Net Position - June 30, 2018 

Proprietary Fund -
Enterprise Funds 

Utility Fund 

880,822 

54.175 

934.997 

437,074 

118,252 

156,517 

227,331 

33,700 

390,945 

276.800 

1.640.619 

(705,622) 

5.852 

5,852 

(699,770) 

423.696 

423,696 

(276,074) 

5.320.444 

5.044.370 

11 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Statement I 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 

Cash payments to employees for services 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Cash flows from non-capital financing 
Transfers from other funds 

Other expense 
Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Other revenue 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and relaced financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2017 
Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2018 

Reconciliation of operating income to net provided by operating 
activities 

Operating income 
Adjustments 

Depreciation 

Net changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 

Inventory 

Customers' security deposits 

Accounts payable 

Current increase (decrease) in pension liability 
Net cash provided for (used for) operating activities 

Proprietary Fund -
Enterprise Funds 

Utility Fund 

776,909 
(719,251) 
(374,886) 

(317,228) 

423,696 
(45,715) 
377.981 

(3,063) 
5.852 

2.789 

63,542 

624.340 

687.882 

(705,622) 

276,800 

42,350 
4,740 
16,140 
(7,861) 
56.225 

(317,228) 

12 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule la 

Town of Jonesboro 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Budget -
Original 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax $ 125,250 $ 126,839 $ 1,589 

Franchise tax 125,000 161,963 36,963 

Sales tax 850,000 883,754 33,754 

Other tax 14,025 1,931 (12,094) 

Licenses and permits 29,625 87,793 58,168 

Operating grant 7,800 556 (7,244) 

Intergovernmental 64,625 90,494 25,869 

Fines, forfeitures, and court costs 2,000 52,662 50,662 

Rent, royalty, and commission 17,950 (14,902) (32,852) 

Charges for services 63,900 324,174 260,274 

Miscellaneous 500 14,540 14,040 

Total revenues 1,300,675 1,729,804 429,129 

Expenditures 

Current: 

General government 786,470 583,178 203,292 

Public safety 

Police 338,425 529,163 (190,738) 

Fire 332,950 389,298 (56,348) 

Streets 1,186,350 899,384 286,966 

Sanitation 193,500 127,604 65,896 

Capital outlay - 327,598 (327,598) 

Total expenditures 2,837,695 2,856,225 (18,530) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

(1,537,020) (1,126,421) 410,599 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

13 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule la 

Town of Jonesboro 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Interest earnings 

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 

Operating transfers 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net changes in fund balances 

Fund balances - June 30, 2017 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 

500 

830.000 

830.500 

(706,520) 

191.479 

$ (515,041)$ 

6 

3,820 

1.310.886 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(494) 

3,820 

480.886 

1.314.712 

188.291 

191.479 

379,770 $ 

484.212 

894.811 

894.811 

14 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule lb 

Town of Jonesboro 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Fire Ad Valorem Tax 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

Budget -
Original 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax $ 90,000 $ 114,475 $ 24,475 

Operating grant 300 100 (200) 

Miscellaneous 5,400 - (5,400) 

Total revenues 95,700 114,575 18,875 

Expenditures 

Current: 

Public safety 

Fire - - -

Total expenditures _ _ _ 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

95,700 114,575 18,875 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Operating transfers (90,000) (136,009) (46,009) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (90,000) (136,009) (46,009) 

Net changes in fund balances 5,700 (21,434) (27,134) 

Fund balances - June 30, 2017 (2,374) (2,374) _ 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 $ 3,326 $ (23,808) $ (27,134) 

15 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule Ic 

Town of Jonesboro 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Streets Ad Valorem Tax 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

Budget -
Original 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem tax $ 90,000 $ 73,399 $ (16,601) 

Total revenues 90,000 73,399 (16,601) 

Expenditures 

Current: 

Public works - - -

Total expenditures _ _ _ 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

90,000 73,399 (16,601) 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Operating transfers (90,000) (140,653) (50,653) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (90,000) (140,653) (50,653) 

Net changes in fund balances - (67,254) (67,254) 

Fund balances - June 30, 2017 20,040 20,040 _ 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 $ 20,040 $ (47,214) $ (67,254) 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule Id 

Town of Jonesboro 

Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Streets Sales Tax 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2018 

Budget -
Original 

Actual 
Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues 

Taxes: 

Sales taxes $ 825,000 $ 883,758 $ 58,758 

Total revenues 825,000 883,758 58,758 

Expenditures 

Current: 

Public works - - -

Total expenditures _ _ _ 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

825,000 883,758 58,758 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Interest earnings - 686 686 

Operating transfers (700,000) (1,457,920) (757,920) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (700,000) (1,457,234) (757,234) 

Net changes in fund balances 125,000 (573,476) (698,476) 

Fund balances - June 30, 2017 713,935 713,935 _ 

Fund balances - June 30, 2018 $ 838,935 $ 140,459 $ (698,476) 

17 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



Schedule 2a 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability 
Municipal Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

Employer's covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

0.288100% 0.284821% 0.259739% 0.325444% 

$ 1,205,244 $ 1,167,399 $ 927,828 $ 835,235 

$ 523,205 $ 508,788 $ 443,307 $ 530,325 

230.36% 229.45 % 209.30 % 157.49 % 

62.49 % 62.11 % 66.18% 73.99 % 

18 



Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule 2b 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.060220 % 0.049137 % 0.035852% 0.028929 % 

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 525,737 $ 460,552 $ 280,860 $ 180,981 

Employer's covered employee payroll $ 179,772 $ 137,645 $ 95,903 $ 81,307 

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 

292.45 % 334.59% 292.86 % 222.59 % 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 70.08% 66.04 % 70.73 % 75.10% 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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Schedule 2c 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability 
Firefighters' Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

Employer's covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

0.059320% 0.077495% 0.078851% 0.076682% 

$ 340,036 $ 506,887 $ 425,569 $ 341,228 

$ 138,515 $ 174,733 $ 167,572 $ 155,770 

245.49% 290.09 % 253.96% 219.06 % 

73.55 % 68.16% 72.45 % 76.02 % 
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Schedule 3a 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Municipal Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Contracturally required contribution $ 150,404 $ 119,029 $ 100,486 $ 87,553 

Contributions in relation to contractually required contribution 150,404 119,029 100,486 87,553 

Contribution deficiency (excess) - - - -

Employer's covered payroll $ 607,693 $ 523,205 $ 508,788 $ 443,307 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 24.75 % 22.75 % 19.75 % 19.75 % 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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Schedule 3b 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Contracturally required contribution $ 63,029 $ 57,078 $ 40,605 $ 30,209 

Contributions in relation to contractually required contribution 63,029 57,078 40,605 30,209 

Contribution deficiency (excess) - - - -

Employer's covered payroll $ 204,970 $ 179,772 $ 137,645 $ 95,903 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 30.75% 31.75% 29.50% 31.50% 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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Schedule 3c 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Firefighters' Retirement System 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Contracturally required contribution $ 38,082 $ 34,975 $ 47,615 $ 49,015 

Contributions in relation to contractually required contribution 38,082 34,975 47,615 49,015 

Contribution deficiency (excess) - - - -

Employer's covered payroll $ 143,703 $ 138,515 $ 174,733 $ 167,572 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 26.50 % 25.25 % 27.25 % 29.25 % 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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Schedule 5 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation Paid Councilpersons 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

Devin R. Flowers 

Nia E. Johnson 

Janet Martin 

Robbie A. Siadek 

Aaron Stringer 

2018 

6,000 

6,000 

6,000 

6,000 

6,000 

30.000 
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Schedule 6 

Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head 
For the year ended June 30, 2018 

James Bradford 

Mayor 

Salary 

Reimbursements 

60,000 

1,122 

61,122 
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B& BOSCH & 
STATHAM 

-••Lcountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana 

We were engaged to audit, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund 
of the Town of Jonesboro, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town of Jonesboro's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 2, 
2020. Our report disclaims an opinion on such financial statements because, due to the nature and quantity of our audit 
findings, we were unable to accept management's representation letter. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In connection with our engagement to audit the financial statements of the Town of Jonesboro, we considered the Town of 
Jonesboro's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Jonesboro's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Jonesboro's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited piupose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. However, as described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the 
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be material weaknesses. (2018-001 through 
2018-003, 3018-005 through 2018-009, 2018-013 through 2018-019, 2018-022, 2018-023). 

Compliance and Other Matters 

In connection with our engagement to audit the financial statements of the Town of Jonesboro, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items 2018-004, 
2018-010 through 2018-013, 2018-017 through 2018-023. Additionally, if the scope of our work had been sufficient to 
enable us to express opinions on the basic financial statements, other instances of noncompliance or other matters may have 
been identified and reported herein. 

Town of Jonesboro's Response to Findings 

Town of Jonesboro's response to the findings identified in our engagement is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and responses. Town of Jonesboro's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
engagement to audit the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Independent Auditor's Report Required by GAGAS - 2018 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is 
an integral part of an engagement to perform an audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

Ruston, Louisiana 

April 2, 2020 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OE AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OE ITNDINGS 
AS OE AND EOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

A SUMMARY OE AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The auditor's report disclaims an opinion on the Town's financial statements as a whole. 
2. Seventeen material weaknesses were disclosed by the audit of the financial statements. 
3. Twelve instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Town of Jonesboro were disclosed 

in the audit of the financial statements. 
4. No management letter was issued. 

R ITNDINGS - ITNANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

2018-001 Cash Receipt Books Not Properly Maintained 

Eirst reported 
2015 

Type 

Material Weakness 

Condition 
In 2015, prenumbered cash receipts were not used in order. During the year ended June 30, 2016, new ticket books 
were purchased and clerks were insttucted to use them in order. We were better able to perform a test to account for 
receipt numbers. However, we noted eight receipt numbers that we could not account for. We selected twenty-five 
receipt numbers and attempted to trace them to deposits. We were only able to ttace nine out of twenty-five receipts 
to deposits posted in the accounting system. We were unable to complete the test because the deposit summary does 
not list individual receipts. The deposit summary lists totals for each type of collection such as fines. 

During the year ended June 30, 2017, we found that the deposit summary had not been revised to provide a proper 
audit trail. We did not select a sample from the receipt books. We did select twenty-five tickets from the tickets issued 
by the police department during the year. Fifteen of the twenty-five tickets were paid. We were unable to trace four 
of the payments to a summary. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, we were again unable to ttace receipts to deposit documentation because 
personnel do not document which receipts are included in the daily deposits. We noted the daily sheet is attached to 
a report from the utility software showing what amount was collected that day and that amounts for water and sewer 
matched the daily sheet. However, we could not verify that amounts collected for the general fund were accurate. Per 
our understanding of policies and procedures, cashiers complete a daily cash countof their drawer. However, we noted 
that those sheets do not match the total daily deposit sheet. We noted for later periods, receipts were being copied and 
attached to daily sheets to support for the balances. During our testing, we noticed one receipt was issued out of order, 
and the white copies of receipts were not retained for several voided receipts. 

Criteria 
Basic internal conttol procedures for cash receipts include: 

1. Using a prenumbered receipt book in order. 
2. Notating in the books which receipt numbers were included in which deposit. 
3. Retaining all copies of any voided receipts. 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OE AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OE ITNDINGS 
AS OE AND EOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Effect 
Cash receipts may be misclassified causing a misstatement in the financial statements. The Town is at risk for fraud. 

Recommendation 
Our 2015 recommendation read: 

1. Receipt book purchases should be documented. 
2. Receipt books should be numbered when they are received from the vendor. 
3. A log book should be maintained to record who each book is issued to. 
4. Clerks should use the receipts in order. 
5. All copies of any voided receipts should be retained. 
6. Notation should be made as to the deposit date and deposit amount for each receipt (or series of receipts as long 

as all receipts are included in a deposit). 
7. The Town Clerk should review the books periodically to ensure that implemented procedures are being followed. 

We recommend that management continue to address the identified issues. We specifically recommend that the system 
for summarizing daily receipts be modified to ensure that a cash receipt can be easily traced from the receipt book to 
the deposit. We recommend listing individual receipt numbers and amounts on the daily summary including a total 
for each fund for each revenue account. 

We have no further recommendations. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-002 Liability for Customer Deposits Exceeds Restricted Cash 

Eirst reported 
2015 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
As of June 30, 2018, the liability for customer deposits per the general ledger, $182,294, exceeds the cash held in 

restricted bank accounts by $74,281. The liability per the meter deposit report from the billing software is $238,087. 

Criteria 
Customer deposits are not available for spending. 

Cause 
Th auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. It appears that there was an $82,366 deduction in 2011 
but the reason is unknown. 

Effect 
The required funds have not been separated from the operating account. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management transfer funds to match the liability as soon as possible. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OE AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OE ITNDINGS 
AS OE AND EOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-003 Utility Eund Accounts Receivable Includes Bad Debts 

Eirst reported 
2015 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
Historically, though amounts reported in financial statements were adjusted down to the estimated collectible amount, 
the subsidiary records were not written down. The total of the subsidiary record at June 30, 2018 was $398,801. The 
fiscal advisor adjusted the amount in the control accounts to $99,665 (sum of garbage $25,656, sewer $23,602 and 
water $50,407). The report we were given from the billing software did not total the aging amounts. 

In 2015, we selected a sample of ten balances out of approximately 300 balances to test for subsequent payment. Out 
of the ten sample items, four had been paid at the time of our fieldwork. We then selected amounts greater than $75 
for testing. We looked at thirteen of the accounts that had balances in excess of $75. Out of those thirteen, two had 
been paid at the time of testing. One of those thirteen was a commercial account with a disputed balance of $62,307. 
No allowance has been recorded. During this testing, we noted that the billing system presented balances as current 
that were not current. Many times, the balances were more than a year old. 

In 2016, we selected a sample of 33 balances out of the balances in the "over 90" column to test for subsequent 
payment. Out of the 33 sample items, two were credit balances, one was under a payment plan, and one had paid 
$18,600 out of $50,155 at the time of our fieldwork. This account was disputed. The $18,600 was a negotiated 
payment. 

In 2017, we selected a sample often balances from the accounts receivable trial balance as of June 30, 2017. None of 
the balances were paid as of April 11, 2018. 

In 2018, we selected a sample of ten balances from the accounts receivable trial balance as of June 30, 2018. As of 
February 5, 2019, eight balances had been written off and two balances were still unpaid. The two unpaid balances 
were current at June 30, 2018 but would have been more than six months old at the time of the audit. 

Criteria 
Proper internal control requires that procedures be in place to ensure that the subsidiary ledger is accurate, and balances 
presented in the financial statements are properly valued. 

Cause 
We do not understand the cause. 

Effect 
Receivables and revenue may be overstated. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management create a reasonable timeline to work to clean up the subsidiary ledger. It seems that 
adjustaient entries could be recorded in each account that has been determined to be uncollectible. Even though the 
account balance would be adjusted to zero and the account made inactive, the account would still contain the history 
of transactions should the Town need to access it. 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OE AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OE ITNDINGS 
AS OE AND EOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-004 Noncompliance with Public Bid Law 

Eirst reported 
2015 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
During our fiscal year 2015 test of disbursements, we noted one disbursement out of twenty-five disbursements that 
appeared to have required compliance with the Public Bid Law. The disbursement was for fuel. We noted no bids 
obtained. The Town spent over $50,000 for fuel during the fiscal year. No bid was obtained for fiscal year 2016 
purchases either. 

During 2017, the Town advertised for fuel bids but not until May 25, 2017 and June 1, 2017. The minutes of the June 
13, 2017 meeting indicate no bids were received. The Town's fuel purchases for the year ended June 30, 2017 totaled 
$44,449. 

During the audit for fiscal year 2018, the Town advertised for fuel bids. The Town Clerk asserted that no bids were 
received. However, we noted no discussion in the minutes to indicate that the Board was involved in the decision to 
advertise or that it was advised of the lack of bids. 

Criteria 
Louisiana Revised Statute 38:2212.1 states in part, "A.(l)(a) All purchases of any materials or supplies exceeding the 
sum of thirty thousand dollars to be paid out of public funds shall be advertised and let by contract to the lowest 
responsible bidder who has bid according to the specifications as advertised, and no such purchase shall be made 
except as provided in this Part, (b) However, purchases of ten thousand dollars or more, but less than thirty thousand 
dollars, shall be made by obtaining not less than three telephone or facsimile quotations. A written confirmation of 
the accepted offer shall be obtained and made a part of the purchase file. If quotations lower than the accepted 
quotation are received, the reasons for their rejection shall be recorded in the purchase file." The statute also states in 
part, "0.(1) Whenever a public entity desires to purchase technical equipment, apparatus, machinery, materials, or 
supplies of a certain type and such purchases are clearly in the public interest, the public entity m ay specify a particular 
brand, make, or manufacturer in the specifications let out for public bid as provided by this Part. If a particular brand, 
make, or manufacturer is specified, the model or catalog number also shall be specified. (2) Wherever in specifications 
the name of a certain brand, make, manufacturer, or definite specification is utilized, the specifications shall state 
clearly that they are used only to denote the quality standard of product desired and that they do not restrict bidders to 
the specific brand, make, manufacturer, or specification named; that they are used only to set forth and convey to 
prospective bidders the general style, type, character, and quality of product desired; and that equivalent products will 
be acceptable." 

Louisiana Revised Statute 42:20, part A states, "All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of their open 
meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be governed 
by the provisions of R.S. 42:21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited to: (1) 
The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or absent. 
(3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, of any 
votes taken. (4) Any other information that the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes." 
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SUMMARY OE AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OE ITNDINGS 
AS OE AND EOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Cause 
Bids had not been obtained for fuel in previous years. Management in office during fiscal year 2018 believed that bids 
were not required because the vendor owns the fuel pumps that are on Town property. Management compared prices 
paid for refilling the pumps compared to local filling stations and found the prices paid to be lower. 

The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the other conditions. 

Effect 
It appears that the Town did not comply with state law. The Town may have paid more for fuel. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management ensure that the public bid law is followed when making any purchases. In unusual 
circumstances, legal counsel should be consulted. If considered necessary, an Attorney General opinion should be 
requested. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-005 Eailure in Internal Control Over Purchasing 

Eirst reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
We haphazardly selected twenty-five disbursements for testing. We recorded the following exceptions: 

1. One out of twenty-five disbursements did not match supporting documents. 
2. Fifteen out of twenty-five disbursements did not include evidence that two or more people were involved in 

the purchase. 

Additionally, excluding certain types of ttansactions and certain recurring transactions, we selected disbursements that 
were greater than $9,999 for a total of fifteen disbursements. We recorded the following exceptions: 

1. Thirteen disbursements should have included documentation of the receipt of goods or services. Three out of 
thirteen did not include such evidence. 

2. One out of fifteen disbursements did not include documentation that the purchase was properly authorized. 
3. Four out of fifteen were not properly posted. 
4. We were unable to inspect the cleared image of the cancelled checks as the Town Clerk did not submit all of 

the bank statements to us. We submitted a list of required data in advance of the fieldwork date. We worked 
at Town Hall for a solid week. The Town Clerk was absent and unavailable due to alleged medical leave 
during our fieldwork during which time her office remained locked and reportedly inaccessible by anyone, 
even the current Mayor. She did not attempt to submit the statements to us for inspection until late in the 
afternoon on the fifth day as we were packing up to leave. 
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JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OE AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OE ITNDINGS 
AS OE AND EOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Criteria 
Basic internal control procedures include: 1) Requiring a purchase order prior to incurring expenses on behalf of the 
Town and 2) Requiring signatures to document goods or services were received. The Town's purchasing policy 
requires: 1) Purchase orders to be obtained with the Mayor's signature and filed with the invoice and 2) Invoices to 
be signed by a responsible employee. 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. 

Effect 
The Town did not comply with its own policies. Unauthorized purchases could be made. The Town could pay for 
goods or services that it did not receive. 

Recommendation 
We recommend: 

1. That employees be reminded of the policies and their purposes. 
2. That employees be notified that policies will be enforced. 
3. That checks to vendors are not prepared or signed if the documentation is not appropriate. 
4. That employees be instructed to appropriately prepare for and respond to audit requests. 

Proper internal conttol includes the environment, risk assessment, information and communication, and monitoring. 
It is imperative that all employees who are involved in purchasing in any manner believe that management expects 
the policies to be followed. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-006 Customer Refunds Not Reflected in the Billing System 

Eirst reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
This condition was reported as a management letter comment in 2015. During 2015 the billing system and the 
accounting system showed deposits of $162,855 and $143,296, respectively. The amount of total additions to deposits 
was only slightly different between the two systems. We noted eight refunds that were not reflected in the billing 
system. 

As of June 30, 2016, the accounting system showed deposits of $151,911 while the billing system showed $208,905. 
We selected thirteen meter deposit refunds from the accounting system. We searched for the deposits on the meter 
deposit schedule produced by the billing system. Five of the thirteen deposits were still reflected on the schedule 
indicating the refunds had not been posted to the billing system. 

As of June 30, 2017, the accounting system showed deposits of $166,153 while the billing system showed $211,595. 
We selected five meter deposit refunds with fiscal year 2017 dates from the accounting system. We searched for the 
deposits on the meter deposit schedule produced by the billing system. All five deposits were still reflected on the 
schedule indicating the refunds had not been posted to the billing system. 
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As of June 30, 2018, the accounting system showed deposits of $182,294 while the billing system showed $238,087. 
We selected five meter deposit refunds with fiscal year 2018 dates from the accounting system. We searched for the 
deposits on the meter deposit schedule produced by the billing system. All five deposits were still reflected on the 
schedule indicating the refunds had not been posted to the billing system. 

Criteria 
Basic internal conttol procedures include reconciling subsidiary accounts to control accounts in a timely manner. 

Cause 
See other findings internal conttol. 

Effect 
The subsidiary ledger does not support the liability account in the accounting system. Customers could receive refunds 
for amounts already refunded. The Town is susceptible to fraud. 

Recommendation 
In 2015, our recommendation read: 

We recommend that management oversee a project to clean up the customer deposit records in the billing system. 
Refunds posted in the accounting system for at least the period from July 1, 2014, through the present should be ttaced 
to the billing system. An adjustment should be made to the billing system records to reflect refunds where necessary. 
After that period is researched and the resulting adjustments are made, management should continue the research until 
the difference between the accounting system and the billing system is minimal. Management should ensure that 
employees understand the appropriate procedures to be followed when a deposit is refunded either to pay the 
customer's final bill or directly to the customer. 

We have no additional recommendations. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-007 Overtime Pay 

Eirst reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness 
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Condition 
The payment of overtime appears to be excessive. 

During fiscal year 2016, the Town paid employees for overtime hours a total of $151,838 versus $109,059 in fiscal 
year 2015. The following is a summary by department of those costs: 

Departtnent Hours Amount 
Administration 691.65 $16,998 
Public Works 5,998.93 93,779 
Police 866.33 16,491 
Fire 1.291.00 24.570 
Total 8,847.91 $151,838 

During fiscal year 2017, the Town paid employees for overtime hours a total of $136,764 versus $151,838 in 2016. 
The following is a summary of those costs: 

Departtnent Hours Amount 
Administration 406.67 $9,992 
Public Works 5,547.87 85,737 
Police 806.58 15,309 
Fire 1.348.00 25.725 
Total 8,109.12 $136,763 

During fiscal year 2018, 43 out of approximately 68 employees were paid overtime. Typically, an employee's annual 
hours would be 2,080 calculated as 40 hours per week times 52 weeks; however, 6 employees were paid for greater 
than 2500 hours for the year. For 12 employees, overtime was greater than 20% of their regular salary. For 2 employees 
of the Water/Sewer Departaient, overtime pay represented 52% ($18k over $35k) and 53% ($16k over $3 Ik) of their 
regular salaries. Overtime pay increased from $113,000 in 2017 to $144,000 in 2018. Of total overtime, $77,000 was 
paid to public works employees. 

Criteria 
Overtime pay is generally limited to those instances when it is imperative that work be performed outside of regular 
work hours. Basic internal control practices include requiring pre-authorization to work overtime and monitoring of 
overtime costs by a supervisory employee to minimize it where possible. 

Article VII Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Ih"ohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for any private enterprise." 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the exact cause of the condition. Controls are not sufficiently designed to prevent 
the costs. Reasons given to the auditor by management for some of the overtime hours include: water and sewer repair 
emergencies, the need to enter meter readings manually, and the need to work early or late to review time sheets to 
submit them to the payroll clerk on time. We received multiple complaints by multiple sources alleging that water 
department employees intentionally delay some repairs until the weekend to increase their overtime pay. 
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Effect 
The Town may have paid more than necessary to provide services because hours did not need to be paid at overtime 
rates or the work did not need to be performed after hours. Excessive amounts of overtime cost generally mean that 
the staff is too small, there are inefficiencies, and/or there is abuse and/or fraud. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management evaluate payroll costs in relation to work loads and needs. Conttols should be revised 
to ensure that overtime is authorized before it is incurred and approved before it is paid. Supervisors should ensure 
that work is properly prioritized to prevent employees from working overtime unless it is necessary. Additionally, we 
recommend that management consider using seasonal and part-time workers. These workers would earn at regular 
rates as opposed to 150% of regular pay rates. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-008 Utility Billing Procedures 

Eirst reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
For the fiscal year 2017 audit, procedures we performed included the following: 

• We inquired of the Town Clerk, various employees, vendors, and customers regarding meter reading and 
billing procedures. We were told by multiple sources that the meters are not read and that bills arrive too late 
for customers to pay on time. 

• We selected a sample of four meters to locate and read to compare to the last billed reading. We read three 
out of four meters. Town employees could not locate the fourth meter. None of the three readings were 
consistent with the previous billed readings. One of the four meters was for a commercial lawn watering 
system, yet the billed consumption has not fluctuated since January 2016. Beginning May 1, 2014, the 
customer was billed 110,000 gallons for three months, 117,000 for one month, 108,000 for one month, 
106,000fortwomonths, 105,000 for two months, 100,000 for five months, 102,000 for four months, 103,000 
for two months, then 102,000 from January 1, 2016 through April 1, 2018 (28 months). 

• We inspected the meter reader's records. He records readings in a notebook. It appeared that readings are 
only documented for cutoffs and similar situations, not for regular readings. There are approximately 2,000 
customers on the system. It seems that it would be physically impossible for one person to read the meters in 
time to submit the readings to the Clerk to be entered for billing. 

• We reviewed selected customer account histories. We noted that the billed consumption was the same for 
many months and sometimes years. 

• The Town Clerk demonsttated how she fills out a screen in the billing software to enter a reading for every 
customer in the system. This task was given as a significant reason given for the Clerk's need for overtime. 
However, sources tell us that the outsourced billing service can bill the previous reading by instruction alone. 
Entering the amounts for every customer does not appear to be necessary. 
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• We noted through interviews with various customers and others that bills were often mailed to customers 
after the standard billing date. Management blamed the outsourced billing service. It appears that the fault 
lies with the Town not notifying the outsourced billing service to proceed with billing in a timely manner. 
This seems especially odd since none of the meters are being read. We were initially told that meters were 
being read manually. Later we were told that the meters were being read on a rotation basis whereby all 
meters were read every couple of months. The Town Clerk ultimately admitted that the meters were not being 
read and that the Mayor was aware that they were not being read. 

For the fiscal year 2018 audit, the results were much the same. We again received allegations that meters are not read, 
customers are billed the same amount month after month, and bills are mailed too late for timely payments. Our 
inspection of account histories and the results of other procedures are consistent with these allegations. 

Criteria 
Policies and procedures for utility billing should ensure that customers are billed for the services they use at authorized 
rates. 

Article VII Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Prohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for any private enterprise." 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. The Town has invested in a system that would read 
the meters electronically in a short amount of time. While the Town was under Fiscal Administration, the Fiscal 
Administtator was systematically updating meters that were not working with the automated reader. Had the process 
been continued, it seems most if not all of the meters could now be read electronically. It appears that this process 
would have taken an hour or two at most. 

Effect 
The Town cannot be billing for actual usage. This could result in under or overbilling customers and over or 
understating the Town's revenue. The billing process may be taking longer than necessary which may be costing the 
town in payroll expenses. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management form a committee, perhaps including one or more Board members, to evaluate the 
process and determine whether meters are being read properly and customers and being billed properly. We 
recommend that none of the persons that are currently involved in the system be solely responsible for the project. We 
recommend that a plan be devised to update the remaining meters to be read by the electronic reading system. We 
recommend that the entire project be completed within a year. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-009 Timekeeping Procedures 

Eirst reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness 

37 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 
JONESBORO, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OE AUDIT RESULTS AND SCHEDULE OE ITNDINGS 
AS OE AND EOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018 

Condition 
During the audit of the 2017 fiscal year, we selected for testing twenty-five employees from the pay period of January 
19, 2017 through January 25, 2017. We noted the following: 

1. The supervisor's approval was not documented for two out of twenty-five time/attendance records. 
2. Three out of twenty-five paychecks included the use of accrued leave. One of three time/attendance records 

did not include evidence of a supervisor's approval of leave used. 

During the audit of the 2016 fiscal year, we noted the following issues that also occurred in the test period referred to 
above: 

1. No form or incomplete overtime form supporting overtime paid 
2. No lunch breaks recorded 
3. Clocking in and out and the exact same time everyday 
4. Manual entries on time/attendance records of employees who use a clock 

During the audit of the 2018 fiscal year, we selected for testing the period from June 14, 2018 to June 20, 2018, a pay 
period in the last month of the fiscal year. The time period was selected for the purpose of determining the most current 
state of the payroll processing system. We selected twenty-five employees for testing ensuring that at least one 
employee was selected from each department. The following is a summary of results: 

1. One employee left in November 2017. Attendance was documented for the remaining 24 employees tested. 
2. For 13 out of 24 employees tested, the supervisor's signature was not present on the attendance record. 
3. During the test period, 7 out of 24 employees were paid overtime. The supervisor's signature was not present 

to approve the overtime for 4 out of 7 employees. 

Criteria 
Basic practices include procedures to ensure that time/attendance records supporting paychecks are accurate, 
reviewed, and approved. Town policies should be enforced to include completely and accurately preparing required 
forms. All state and federal laws and regulations related to payroll should be adhered to. Manually entering time for 
employees using a time clock should be infrequent. 

Article VII Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Prohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for any private enterprise." 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the exact cause for all aspects of the condition. It appears that the various 
supervisors are not consistent in enforcing policies or reviewing time reports. This lack of concern for policy may 
have come from an inappropriate control environment more commonly known as the tone at the top. 

Effect 
Employees could be over or underpaid due to error, abuse or fraud. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management ensure that supervisors and employees are properly trained and reminded of policies 
and procedures. Employees and supervisors should be told that payroll will not be processed without proper 
documentation. 
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Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-010 Noncompliance with Budget Act 

Eirst reported 
2016 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
Management did not submit to the auditor a 2017-2018 budget. We received a 2018-2019 budget that included a 
column for the 2017-2018 audit. The budget included a budgeted deficit fund balance for the General Fund. We noted 
no amendments and no ordinance evident in the Board minutes. 

General Fund expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by $484,212 or 58%. 

Fire Ad Valorem Tax Fund operating transfers exceeded budget by 51%. There were no other expenditures or other 
uses. The fund ended the year with a deficit balance of $23,808. 

Street Ad Valorem Tax Fund revenues were 18% below budgeted revenues. Actual ttansfers out were 56% above 
budgeted transfers. There were no other expenditures or other uses. The fund ended the year with a deficit balance of 
$47,214. 

Street Sales Tax Fund transfers out were 108% ($757,920) above budgeted transfers. There were no other e^enditures 
or other uses. The fund ended the year with a fund balance of $ 140,459. 

Criteria 
Section 406 of the Lawrason Act, states in part, "A. (3) Any act of the Board of Aldermen which would provide for 
the appropriation of funds, the incurrence of debt, or the issuance of bonds or other evidences of indebtedness shall 
be by ordinance." 

Section 1313 of the Budget Act also states in part, "The chief executive or administtative officer shall retain and file 
certified copies of the adopted budget, budget adoption insfrument, duly authorized budget amendments, and copies 
of supporting schedules and correspondence related to the budget at the domicile of the governing authority." 

Louisiana Revised Statute 42:20, part A states, "All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of their open 
meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be governed 
by the provisions of R.S. 42:21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited to: (1) 
The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or absent. 
(3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, of any 
votes taken. (4) Any other information that the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes." 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the cause of the condition. 

Effect 
The Town's budget file does not clearly demonstrate the Town's compliance with the Budget Act. Conttols did not 
operate effectively to prevent noncompliance. 
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Recommendation 
We recommend that management consult with the Town Attorney to revise procedures to ensure that the Town 
complies with laws affecting the budget process. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-011 Eailure to Publish Minutes 

Eirst reported 
2016 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the Town did not publish Board of Aldermen minutes in the official journal 
for a period of several months. The June 2015 minutes were published July 23, 2015. We noted no other minutes 
published from July 23, 2015 through June 30, 2016. 

The minutes for meetings held between July 19, 2016 and September 12, 2017 were published November 16, 2017. 
We did not receive evidence that minutes for later meetings for the audit year had been published as of February 2019, 
the time of fieldwork. 

Criteria 
Louisiana Revised Statute 42:20 states, "Written minutes A. All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of 
their open meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be 
governed by the provisions of R.S. 42:21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited 
to: (1) The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or 
absent. (3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, 
of any votes taken. (4) Any other information that the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes. 
B.(l) The minutes shall be public records and shall be available within a reasonable time after the meeting, except 
where such disclosures would be inconsistent with R.S. 42:16, 17, and 18, or rules adopted under the provisions of 
R.S. 42:21. (2) If the public body has a website, the public body shall post on its website a copy of the minutes made 
available pursuant to Paragraph (1) of this Subsection and shall maintain the copy of those minutes on the website for 
at least three months after the posting. If the public body is required to publish its minutes in an official journal, the 
public body shall post its minutes on its website as required by this Paragraph within ten days after publication in the 
official journal. If the public body is not required to publish its minutes in an official journal, the public body shall 
post its minutes on its website as required by this Paragraph within a reasonable time after the meeting. The inability 
of the public to access the public body's website due to any type of technological failure shall not be a violation of the 
provisions of this Chapter." 

Louisiana Revised State 43:144 states, "Penalty for failure to have proceedings published. The official of any 
municipal corporation, police jury, or school council by law responsible for the preparing and recording of the official 
proceedings who, within twenty days from the date of any meeting at which the official proceedings were had, wilfully 
neglects or fails to furnish the official journal with a copy of the minutes, ordinances, resolutions, budgets, and 
proceedings for publication, shall be fined not less than twenty-five dollars nor more than five hundred dollars, or be 
imprisoned for not less than ten days nor more than six months, or both." 

Cause 
See finding 2018-015. 
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Effect 
The Town did not comply with state law concerning minutes. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management review policies and procedures to ensure that policies and procedures are adequately 
designed and monitored to prevent noncompliance. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-012 Late Eiling of Police Supplemental Pay Reports 

Eirst reported 
2017 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
For fiscal year 2017, four out of twelve police supplemental pay warrants were signed after the tenth of the month 
following the reporting period. For fiscal year 2018, neither the date of the signatures nor the filing dates were 
documented for two out of twelve months. The majority of the reports appeared to have been obtained from the 
Louisiana Supplemental Pay office because the Town Clerk did not have copies on file. 

Criteria 
LRS 40 :1667 through 40:1667.9 provides for supplemental pay. The warrant required submitted to the Louisiana 
Department of Public Safety & Corrections, Public Safety Services states that it is due to the Department by the tenth 
of the month following the paid month. 

Cause 
The auditor was unable to determine the cause for the delays. 

Effect 
The Town is not in compliance with state law as it relates to police supplemental pay. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management design and implement procedures to ensure that requirements relating to 
supplemental pay are met. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-013 Einancial Statements Issued After Due Date 

Eirst reported 
2016 

Type 
Material Weakness, Noncompliance 
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Condition 
The audit report was submitted after the statutory due date. 

Criteria 
State law requires the Town to submit to the Louisiana Legislative Auditor audited financial statements within six 
months of year end or December 31, 2018. 

Cause 
See other findings. The audit report was delayed by the following: 

Accounting records were not properly maintained. 
The outside accountant was not asked to monitor bookkeeping during the year to confirm that all ttansactions 
had been entered, that bank accounts had been reconciled, and to check for bookkeeping errors. 
The outside accountant was not able to work at Town Hall on year-end adjustments in the time frame he had 
scheduled. The Town Clerk had not completed her work to allow him to complete his work. 
Once the outside accountant could begin his work, he found incomplete bookkeeping and errors. 
The above delays caused scheduling conflicts for the outside accountant and auditor. Both firms were booked 
for other engagements. The firms had to work on the town's books and audit as their schedules permitted. In 
an attempt to make progress, as our schedule permitted, we began completing procedures before the books 
were adjusted to their final state and before the financial statements were available. Only a limited amount 
of work can be completed before the books are available. The financial statements did not become available 
until October 2019. 

• Information obtained from procedures performed indicated a higher risk of material misstatement and 
noncompliance with laws, regulations, and contacts than initially assessed. Additional procedures had to be 
performed. 

Effect 
When an entity is late filing its report, the entity is placed on the LLA's noncompliance list. Being placed on the list 
results in an entity receiving no funds from the State until the entity is removed from the list. Management cannot 
work in a timely manner to resolve internal control deficiencies and noncompliance with laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants identified by the auditor. 

Recommendation 
We recommend the following: 

1. Implement recommendations in other findings. 
2. Clearly communicate proper lines of authority and responsibility to all employees. 
3. Ensure that the internal control system design includes proper monitoring, supervision, and review and ensure 

that such monitoring, supervision, and review is taking place. 
4. Ensure that management is present and actively monitoring operations and supervising employees. 
5. Engage the outside CPA to monitor accounting monthly to ensure that proper accounting and conttol 

procedures are followed. 
6. Ensure that the outside CPA is allowed access to complete year-end adjustments and submit data to the 

auditor by August 3 P* each year. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 
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2018-014 Einancial Statements Not Provided to Board of Aldermen 

Eirst reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
Monthly financial statements were not submitted to the Board of Aldermen during the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Criteria 
Proper internal controls and LLA Best Practices include review of financial statements by management and the 
governing board. 

Cause 
Management did not properly utilize the services of the outside accountant to ensure that monthly procedures were 
followed to ensure that all transactions were entered into the accounting system and reconciled to supporting 
documents such as bank statements. Without these procedures, accurate financial statements cannot be produced and 
provided to management and the Board of Aldermen. 

The Town Clerk is responsible for reconciling bank accounts. During fiscal year 2018, only 1 out of 12 bank 
reconciliations were performed timely. In some instances, reconciliations were completed more than 4 months after 
the bank statement date. 

During fiscal year 2018, we noticed that deposits were not posted in a timely manner which means the bank accounts 
could not be reconciled in a timely manner. The Town Clerk is also responsible for preparing deposit documentation 
and submitting the documentation to the bookkeeper for posting. Town procedure is to prepare, deposit, and post 
deposits daily. According to the bookkeeper, the deposit information was often not submitted to her on a timely basis. 
Therefore, deposits and transfers between bank accounts were often not recorded for weeks at a time. The software 
and documentation appear to corroborate the bookkeeper's assertion. The software documents when ttansactions are 
entered and by whom regardless of the effective date that is entered. For example, in the General Fund, according to 
the software, some deposits were entered as follows: 

• July 13, 2017 - by the bookkeeper - seven deposits with dates ranging from June 28, 2017 through July 12, 
2017 

• October 4, 2017 - by the bookkeeper - seven deposits with dates ranging from September 25, 2017 through 
September 27, 2017 

• November 28, 2017 - all except one were entered by the Town Clerk - thirty-five deposits with dates ranging 
from November 4, 2016 through September 9, 2017 

• February 5, 2018 - by the bookkeeper - twenty-nine deposits with dates ranging from December 15, 2017 
through February 1, 2018 

• February 15, 2018 - all except two were entered by the Town Clerk - thirty deposits with dates ranging from 
September 22, 2017 through February 12, 2018 

• April 26, 2018 - thirty-four deposits with dates ranging from July 2016 to June 2017 
• May 10, 2018 - twenty deposits with dates ranging from November 2017 to January 2018 

Deposits for the last few months of the fiscal year were entered timely. 
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Effect 
Management and the Board of Aldermen have not been able to fulfill their responsibility to oversee the Town's 
finances. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Town utilize the outside accountant to ensure that financial statements are provided to 
management and the Board of Aldermen. We recommend that the accountant be allowed to perform the following 
procedures on a monthly basis: 

Confirm that all deposits have been made and recorded 
Confirm that bank reconciliations have been performed for all bank accounts 
Agree other asset and liability accounts to supporting documentation 
Review the general ledger for accounting errors and make adjustaients as needed 
Read financial statements produced from the accounting system and make any changes needed 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-015 Eailure in Multiple Elements of Internal Control 

Eirst reported 
2017 

Type 

Material Weakness 

Condition 
The performance of our audit procedures and statewide agreed-upon procedures included the following: 

• Observance of management and employees 
• Interviews of elected officials, management, employees, citizens, vendors, and conttactors 
• Analytical Reviews 
• Tests of ttansactions 

From these procedures, we identified deficiencies and/or weaknesses in all of the components of internal conttol: 

Conttol environment 
Risk Assessment 
Information and communication 
Monitoring 
Conttol activities 

Evidence obtained from the above procedures indicated the following specific issues: 

• Overall lack of communication and, sometimes, animosity between officials, between departaients, and 
between employees 

• Mayor and Town Clerk are often absent from Town Hall 
• Town Clerk is often behind closed doors when she is present at Town Hall 
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Criteria 
Local governments typically use the Green Book as a model for internal control. Per 
http s: //www, gao. gov/greenbook/overview. "Intemal control helps an entity run its operations efficiently and 
effectively, report reliable information about its operations, and comply with applicable laws and regulations. 
Standards for Intemal Control in the Federal Government, known as the "Green Book," sets the standards for an 
effective intemal control system for federal agencies." 

The Town is subject to the Lawrason Act found in LRS 33:321-463. The Act stipulates that the Council or Board of 
Aldermen has legislative powers and the Mayor is the Chief Executive Officer. The Clerk's duties, per the Act, include 
keeping the minute book, maintaining custody of the town seal, maintaining the court docket, and maintaining and 
preserving other books and records. 

Cause 
We were unable to identify the cause of the condition. 

Effect 
We identified the following effects from the above described condition: 

• The absence of management creates an environment ripe for abuse and fraud. For example, multiple sources 
(officials, employees, citizens, and vendors) reported that employees are often parked/idol in town vehicles 
for extended periods of time during work hours. We received multiple complaints that the phone at the public 
works department often goes unanswered. We received multiple complaints that employees use town 
equipment for personal uses. Also see the other findings, including, but not limited to, excessive overtime. 

• Poor communication limits the ability of employees to perform their assigned duties. It is necessary to 
communicate information and transfer data and documents among departments to ensure that transactions 
are properly initiated, authorized, documented, and recorded. For example, we noted that the bookkeeper 
responsible for processing payroll and accounts payable and posting deposits has difficulty getting properly 
completed time/attendance and leave records, purchase orders, invoices, and deposit information from other 
employees. Also, the police chief moved the collection of fmes from town hall to the police department due 
to failures reported in the fiscal year 2016 audit report. 

• The fiscal advisor (accountant) was unable to fully adjust balances due to time constraints and lack of 
cooperation from the Town Clerk. Unidentified differences are posted to miscellaneous income or 
expenditure/expense accounts. 

• Unadjusted amoimts on the trial balance prepared by the fiscal advisor do not agree to the trial balance 
produced by QuickBooks at Town Hall. This indicates that employees changed QuickBooks after it was 
submitted to the fiscal advisor for year-end adjustments. 

• Bank reconciliations were not timely or accurate. 
• Many transactions were not posted during the year. 
• As of June 30, 2018, there were cash overdrafts in the Fire Ad Valorem and Utility Funds of $23,858 and 

$94,766, respectively. 
• Grant documents and many bank statements were not provided to us or not provided in a timely manner. 

Though we requested data in advance and worked at Town Hall for a solid week, the Town Clerk did not 
attempt to submit to us some bank statements until the evening of the fifth day as we were packing up to 
leave. 

• We were unable to trace payments totaling $4,871 from Louisiana's OSRAP website to the general ledger. 
• Other revenue per utility billing reports could not be reconciled to the adjusted trial balances. 
• We were unable to explain material variances from expectations in revenue and expenditures/expenses. 
• All or a majority of the other findings are caused by this condition or are related to this condition. 
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Recommendation 
We recommend that an intentional effort be made to ensure that the Town's internal conttol system is properly 
designed, implemented, and monitored. We previously recommended that the Town utilize its outside accountant or 
CPA firm to monitor the accounting and reporting function. The firm could also assist in evaluating and adjusting the 
internal control system and perhaps testing the system to ensure that it is functioning as designed. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2017-016 Lack of Segregation of Duties in Collections 

Eirst reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness 

Condition 
During the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, some employees performed incompatible duties. The Town Clerk 
received collections from the cashiers, prepared the deposits, took the deposit to the bank, and prepared the daily 
summary of collections at town hall. The tax collector prepared tax bills, collected tax payments, posted tax payments 
in the tax software, and managed the tax sale. Additionally, during the year, due to a fiscal year 2016 audit finding, 
the police chief moved collections of fines from town hall to the police department. A better segregation of duties is 
achieved when collections are at town hall since the police departaient writes citations and accounts for citation 
numbers. 

We did not identify any control activities that mitigated the risk increase caused by the lack of proper segregation of 
duties. 

Criteria 
Paragraph 10.13 of the Green Book reads in part (emphasis added), "Segregation of duties helps prevent fraud, waste, 
and abuse in the internal control system. If segregation of duties is not practical within an operational process because 
of limited personnel or other factors, management designs alternative control activities to address the risk of fraud, 
waste, or abuse in the operational process. Management considers the need to separate control activities related to 
authority, custody, and accounting of operations to achieve adequate segregation of duties. In particular, 
segregation of duties can address the risk of management override. Management override circumvents existing conttol 
activities and increases fraud risk." 

Cause 
The Town Clerk assumed her duties due to lack of available personnel to assign selected duties to. The tax collector 
collected tax payments because she believed it helped her ensure an accurate accounting. The police department 
collected payments of fines due to the police chief's concern about collections issues highlighted in the fiscal year 
2016 audit. 

Effect 
Improper segregation of duties without compensating controls gives one individual too much power and thus increases 
the risk for fraud, waste, and abuse. 

Recommendation 
Our 2017 recommendation read as follows: 
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Our recommendation in the finding regarding failure to produce financial statements could also address the lack 
of segregation of duties. The outside accountant's role could include monitoring of these activities. However, we 
recommend that cashiers at town hall be responsible for all collections. 

Current management has asserted that the accountant will be taking over some of the duties such as posting deposits, 
paying vendors, and processing payroll. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-017 Utility Accounts of Employees and Officials Paid Late 

Eirst reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness, Noncompliance 

Condition 
The utility accounts of two supervisory employees were allowed to remain open in spite of a lack of payment. 

The first employee did not make payment on his account from March 3, 2017 to December 22, 2017, when he paid 
the entire balance of $712.52. A check was issued to this employee on December 22, 2017, for $931.83, for eighty 
vacation hours. 

The second employee was first billed on February 1, 2017, but did not make a payment until January 4, 2018, when 
he paid the full balance of $860.10. A check was issued to this employee on December 27, 2017, for $960.00, with a 
memo that read, "REPAIRED WATER LEAKS, WATER WELLS, &... ". This check was written outside of the 
payroll system, as if the employee was an independent conttactor. An invoice supporting this check indicates the work 
was performed during June and July 2017, when the employee was briefly retired. This employee is also the subject 
of fmding 2017-019. 

Additionally, though her account was current at year end, the Town Clerk, who is responsible for overseeing the utility 
billing and collection, was charged seven penalties during the year for late payment. Several other officials and key 
employees were charged one or more penalties during the year, indicating their payments were received past the due 
date. It appears that penalties were often not charged to employees and officials even if their payments were late. 

Criteria 
Article VII Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution states in part, "Prohibited Uses. Except as otherwise provided by 
this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be 
loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Section, neither the state nor a political subdivision shall subscribe to or purchase the stock of a 
corporation or association or for any private enterprise." 

Cause 
We did not identify the cause of the condition. 
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Effect 
In failing to collect balances owed by employees to the Town, the Town loaned funds to the employees in violation 
of the Constitution. Additionally, failing to collect from any individual or company who owes the Town is reducing 
the Town's ability to provide services. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Town ensure that its written policy for terminating services and collecting payments is 
appropriately designed and implemented. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-018 Employee Paid as Contract Labor 

Eirst reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness, Noncompliance 

Condition 
The water department supervisor filed retirement papers with a retirement date of May 31, 2017 and was issued a 
check from the Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana representing a refund of his contributions and 
forfeiture of the employer matching contributions. The employee was rehired July 3, 2017. On December 22, 2017, 
the employee received a nonpayroll check for $960.00 for 80 hours of work he performed in June and July 2017, when 
he was officially retired. 

Criteria 
LRS R.S. 42:1121 provides that a former public employee is prohibited for two years following termination of their 
public employment from: 

• Assisting persons, for compensation, in any transaction, or making an appearance in connection with a 
transaction involving their former agency in which they participated at any time during their public 
employment; and 

• Rendering any services which they rendered during their employment on a conttactual basis to, for, or on 
behalf of their former agency. 

Additionally, Internal Revenue Service Regulations prohibit the classification of an employee as an independent 
contractor. Taxes are not withheld, and employer payroll taxes are not paid on payments to conttactors. 

Cause 
We did not identify the cause of the condition. 

Effect 
The employee and the Town appear to have violated the Louisiana Code of Governmental Ethics and IRS regulations 
concerning the classification of employees. The Town could be liable for payroll taxes that should have been paid on 
the compensation to the employee. 
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Recommendation 
We recommend that management consult legal counsel on corrective action. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-019 Certificate of Deposit Cashed Without Board of Aldermen Approval 

Eirst reported 
2017 

Type 
Material Weakness, Noncompliance 

Condition 
Management cashed a Stteet Sales Tax certificate of deposit and deposited the proceeds of $265,479 in the General 
Fund. We noted no Board of Aldermen approval either in the 2017-2018 budget or in the minutes of meetings. 

Criteria 
The transfer of such a large sum of money should have been approved by the Board of Aldermen. The use of the funds 
in the General Fund may not be in accordance with the tax proposition approved by the voters. 

Cause 
We have concern that the Town is overspending and experiencing problems with cash flow due to conditions 
mentioned in other findings. When deposits are not posted timely and bank reconciliations are not performed timely, 
management cannot know how much cash is available to spend. 

Effect 
Management may be spending funds that the Board of Aldermen intended to remain intact. The Town may have 
violated the tax proposition. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Town consult legal counsel and take appropriation action. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-020 Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire Not Properly Executed 

Eirst reported 
2018 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
The Town Clerk submitted the Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire without signatures or approved Board Resolution. 
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Criteria 
Louisiana Audit Law gives the Louisiana Legislative Auditor the authority to impose certain requirements on local 
governments. Via the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, the Town is required to submit to the auditor at the 
beginning of the audit a completed and signed Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire accompanied by a resolution of 
the Board. 

Cause 
The cause is unknown. However, see other findings. 

Effect 
The Town did not comply with the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Town Clerk review the requirements and ensure that future questionnaires are properly 
executed. 
Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-021 Board Meeting Minutes Were Not Properly Prepared or Retained 

Eirst reported 
2018 

Type 
Noncompliance 

Condition 
No minutes were available for meetings that appeared to be held on August 27, 2018 and December 28, 2017. Minutes 
were sometimes too vague. For example, the minutes may mention that someone was hired but not state who or for 
how much. There were numerous errors in other minutes. For example, for one meeting, a Councilperson was listed 
as present AND absent. For other meetings, an ordinance was listed by number with no copy or description in the 
minutes. 

Criteria 
Louisiana Revised Statute 42:20 states, "Written minutes A. All public bodies shall keep written minutes of all of 
their open meetings. The minutes to be kept by the legislature and legislative committees and subcommittees shall be 
governed by the provisions of R.S. 42:21. The minutes of all other public bodies shall include but need not be limited 
to: (1) The date, time, and place of the meeting. (2) The members of the public body recorded as either present or 
absent. (3) The substance of all matters decided, and, at the request of any member, a record, by individual member, 
of any votes taken. (4) Any other information that the public body requests be included or reflected in the minutes. 
B.(l) The minutes shall be public records and shall be available within a reasonable time after the meeting, except 
where such disclosures would be inconsistent with R.S. 42:16, 17, and 18, or rules adopted under the provisions of 
R.S. 42:21. (2) If the public body has a website, the public body shall post on its website a copy of the minutes made 
available pursuant to Paragraph (1) of this Subsection and shall maintain the copy of those minutes on the website for 
at least three months after the posting. If the public body is required to publish its minutes in an official journal, the 
public body shall post its minutes on its website as required by this Paragraph within ten days after publication in the 
official journal. If the public body is not required to publish its minutes in an official journal, the public body shall 
post its minutes on its website as required by this Paragraph within a reasonable time after the meeting. The inability 
of the public to access the public body's website due to any type of technological failure shall not be a violation of the 
provisions of this Chapter." 
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Cause 
The cause was not identified. 

Effect 
The Town did not fully comply with the stated requirements. The minutes do not contain a complete accurate audit 
trail. Minutes are a significant source of audit evidence. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that management review policies and procedures to ensure that policies and procedures are adequately 
designed and monitored to prevent noncompliance. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-022 Eailure to Properly Prepare Bank Reconciliations and Eailure to Submit to the Auditor, Records 
Including Bank Statements and Bank Reconciliations 

Eirst reported 
2018 

Type 
Material Weakness, Noncompliance 

Condition 
See other findings. Bank reconciliations were not prepared in a timely manner. Bank reconciliations contained material 
stale and invalid reconciling items. Several bank reconciliations and bank statements were not submitted to us in a 
timely manner for audit. 

Criteria 
The Louisiana Audit Law states in part (emphasis added): 

"LRS 24§513. Powers and duties of legislative auditor; audit reports as public records; assistance and opinions of 
attorney general; frequency of audits; subpoena power 

A.(l)(a) Subject to Paragraph (3) of this Subsection, the legislative auditor shall have authority to compile financial 
statements and to examine, audit, or review the books and accounts of the state treasurer, all public boards, 
commissions, agencies, departments, political subdivisions of the state, public officials and employees, public 
retirement systems enumerated in R.S. 11:173(A), municipalities, and all other public or quasi public agencies or 
bodies, hereinafter collectively referred to as the "auditee". The scope of the examinations may include financial 
accountability, legal compliance and evaluations of the economy, efficiency, and effectiveness of the auditee's 
programs or any combination of the foregoing. In addition to the authority granted above, the legislative auditor shall 
have access to and be permitted to examine all papers, books, accounts, records, files, insttuments. documents, films. 
tapes, and anv other forms of recordation of all auditees. including but not limited to computers and recording devices. 
and all software and hardware which hold data, is part of the technical processes leading UP to the retention of data, 
or is part of the security system. This access shall not be prohibited by Paragraph (3) of this Subsection. 
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E. In the performance of his duties as herein stated, the legislative auditor, or any member of his staff designated by 
him, shall have the power to inspect and to make copies of any books, records, instruments, documents, files, films, 
tapes, and other forms of recordation, including but not limited to computer and recording devices, of the auditee. He 
may call upon the auditee and any of its officials and staff for assistance and advice, and such assistance shall be given 
through the assignment of personnel or in such other manner as necessity requires. 

H.(l) All auditees and their officials and staff are hereby directed to assist the legislative auditor in his work and to 
furnish such information, reports, aid, services, and assistance as may be requested, all without any cost or charge. It 
shall be the duty of the attorney general and the local district attorney to give assistance to the legislative auditor. The 
attorney general shall render his opinion in writing on any subject requested by the legislative auditor. 
(2)(a) Each auditee shall designate an individual who shall be responsible for filing annual financial reports with the 
legislative auditor and shall notify the legislative auditor of the name and address of the person so designated, 
(b) A governmental entity that provides funding to a quasi public agency or body shall notify each such quasi public 

agency or body of the requirements of this Paragraph. 

I. The authority granted to the legislative auditor in this Section to examine, audit inspect or copy shall extend to all 
books, accounts, papers, documents, records, files, insfruments. films, tapes, and any other forms of recordation. 
including but not limited to computers and recording devices, whether confidential or otherwise. However, the 
legislative auditor shall comply with any and all resttictions imposed by law on documents, data, or information 
deemed confidential by law and furnished to the legislative auditor. 

Cause 
See other findings. 

Effect 
The Town appears to have violated the Louisiana Audit Law. The Law includes the following: 

"K. Whoever violates the provisions of this Section shall be fined not more than one thousand dollars and shall be 
deemed guilty of malfeasance and gross misconduct in office, and shall be subject to removal." 

The Town has been placed on the noncompliance list and will receive no funds from the State until the report is 
submitted. 

Recommendation 
See 2018-013 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 

2018-023 Eailure to Provide Grant Eiles to the Auditor 

Eirst reported 
2018 

Type 
Material Weakness, Noncompliance 
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Condition 
In advance of the beginning of the audit, we submitted to management a detailed request for data that listed that would 
be required for audit. We scheduled fieldwork with management. We explained via our engagement letter and other 
communications that timely, accurate, and complete responses to auditor requests for data and information is crucial 
to the audit process being effective and efficient. 

We never received grant files for audit. 

Criteria 
See 2018-022. Louisiana Audit Law requires the Town to respond to the LLA and the auditor. Grant agreements 
require that audits be completed in accordance with the Louisiana Audit Law. 

Cause 
See other findings. 

Effect 
We were unable to complete audit procedures on grant revenues and expenditures and on compliance. 

Recommendation 
See other findings. We recommend that management ensure records are properly maintained and retained and timely 
submitted to auditors. 

Management's Response 
See management's corrective action plan. 
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C. STATUS OE PRIOR YEAR EINDINGS AND COMMENTS 

2017-001 Cash Receipt Books Not Properly Maintained 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2015 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-001. 

2017-002 Bank Account Required by Debt Agreement Not EuIIy Eunded 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2015 

Status 
The finding is resolved. 

2017-003 Liability for Customer Deposits Exceeds Restricted Cash 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2015 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-002. 

2017-004 Utility Eund Accounts Receivable Includes Bad Debts 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2015 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-003. 

2017-005 Noncompliance with Public Bid Law 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2015 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-004. 
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2017-006 Eailure in Internal Control Over Purchasing 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2016 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-005. 

2017-007 Customer Refunds Not Reflected in the Billing System 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2016 
Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-006. 

2017-008 Overtime Pay Appears to be Excessive 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2016 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-007. 

2017-009 Utility Billing Procedures 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2016 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-( 

2017-010 Timekeeping Procedures 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2016 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-

2017-011 Noncompliance with Budget Act 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2016 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-010. 
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2017-012 Eailure to Publish Minutes 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2016 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-011. 

2017-013 Late Eiling of Police Supplemental Pay Reports 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2017 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-012. 

2017-014 Einancial Statements Issued After Due Date 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2017 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-013. 

2017-015 Einancial Statements Not Provided to Board 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2017 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-014. 

2017-016 Eailure in Multiple Elements of Interna! Control 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2017 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-015. 

2017-017 Lack of Segregation of Duties in Collections 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2017 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-016. 
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2017-018 Utility Accounts of Employees and Officials Paid Late 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2017 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-017. 

2017-019 Employee Paid as Contract Labor 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2017 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-018. 

2017-020 Certificate of Deposit Cashed without Board Approval/Use of Proceeds May Violate Tax Proposal 

Initial Year of Reporting 
2017 

Status 
The finding is repeated. See Finding 2018-019. 
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STATHAM 

. \ccountants 

Independent Accountant's Report 
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

To the Town of Jonesboro 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Town of Jonesboro (Entity) and the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide 
Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1,2017 through June 30, 2018. The Entity's management 
is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. The 
sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this report. Consequently, we 
make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which 
this report has been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that they address each of the following 
categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations): 

We/ohtcuA\e^<M\d/i^\^e<X:e^th^\vntte^polioCe^cLnd/proced4M'&y. We/ohie4^ed/the/ 
•fbU/ywOng^. 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget 

The/policy 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list; (3) the 
preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure 
compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price 
quotes. 

The/2011 policy me4iXX/yyiy'the/prepa^attoY\/ofpLU'cha^or(ierycLyid/itcite/y''the/ 
cle4^k/iyto-'\/e4^0fy" <^piM^cha^Ly\/c<yfviplCa^\4:^wiX^the/P(AhlCc/'BLd/Lciw. The/2016 
Pe^ioy\^iel/PolCcd^<Mxd/Proc&d^u^e^Oncludiyig/'the/2018 re^CUoyvcU^me^itCoriy 
pU/Tchccie/orderyitattng^they vviUyithe/UA^^^fiyr aU/pLLrchcc&e/yccnd/cCppro^ed/hy 
the/ Mayor. hJeithar policy di^cu^&&y how purcha^iey are/ to- initiafed/ or how 
vendory are/ added/. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

The/2011 policy diiou&^&y the/ re\tiewing/ and/ approving of didyar^emeyvtyhtAf 
nofthe/proce^^ivig/ 

Melissa E. Bosch, CPA (318) 475-1987 • Michael D. Statham, CPA (318) 355-9943 
609 North Trenton Street, Ruston, Louisiana • Post Office Box 2377, Ruston, Louisiana 71273-2377 
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d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures should 
include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency 
fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, 
reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

The/ovdy coUe<XL/yyiypolCcyth^wa^y\at&<^way\uithi^lhe^CtA.&(X)ynery3CUX^ig^polCcy. 
If includes the/ receOi^Cng/ and/ t^cordlng/ of coUe^cttony htct doey not add/re/iy the/ 
prepcu'otCori'OfdepoiCCyor managementyactior\ytirenyA*^completene^. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance records, 
including leave and overtime worked. 

BotK'fKe'2016 policy and/ CCy 2018 re^CUorx/\uho-Cy to-appyrne/leoA/e/. Neither 
polu:y dXicu&^eyl^xe/pnyceiiing/, t^Lewin^, orappyxn/in^oftime/aXtendance/recordy, 
intdMd^n^o^ertXrne/. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and conditions, (3) legal 
review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process 

The/2011 policy co7Xti;Unythe/typeyofi€rvCceyj the/ need/for legal/ r^Cew, and/ the/ 
approval/proce^. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to be controlled, (2) 
allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring 
card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases) 

The/2011 policy cor\Xa4/ny cxyntroly in plaice/, the/d/yc4A4nentatCor\/recfuired/, and/the/ 

moriCtOrCng/ofthe/ card/ triage/. The/policy iivrCply itateythe/ card/ iy "ovdy for Town 
fmvel/ hoJ^rueyy." 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by category of expense, 
(3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers 

The/2018 re^/Uionof'(he/2016 polU>yfyvind/inthe/Ervployee/Handlyoxyl<:/cOY\tainyall/ 
of the/ recfoured/ elementy. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defmed in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if 
an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) requirement that all employees, 
including elected officials, annually attest through signature verification that they have read the entity's ethics policy. 

The/poUcy doey not contaCnthe/ recfiUred/ elements 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting requirements, (3) debt 
reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

The/TowndoeynothoA/e/a/deht iervCce/policy. 
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Board or Finance Committee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's enabling legislation, 
charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

VOc recfue/^t^d/ tK©' hocwd/ mCnafe^ for fUccH period/. We/ noted/ the/ mCnut^ for one/ 
meettn^ referenced/ccpprovcd/of mCnut^ for a/ apecidb mcetin^'^'uxt \ue/ did/ not receO\/e/ 
minute^ for. We/ could/ not locatse^ the/ rnCnuCe^ for thi^ meeting the/offtclcd/ minute/ 
hxyok!. 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in accordance with 
the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent dociunent. 

We/ observed/that the/ hoard/ met at leccit monthly. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or included 
monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund and major special revenue fimds, as well as monthly 
financial statements (or budget-to-actual comparisons, if budgeted) for major proprietary fimds. Alternately, for those 
entities reporting on the non-profit accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or included financial 
activity relating to public funds if those public funds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the 
fiscal period. 

We/ did/ v\ot observe/ any reference/ to- or copy of monthly budget-to--actUal/ 
comparCion^onanyfundy. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unrestricted fimd balance in the general 
fimd. If the general fimd had a negative ending unrestricted fimd balance in the prior year audit report, observe that 
the minutes for at least one meeting dining the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the 
negative unrestricted fimd balance in the general fimd. 

We/obtained/the/prCoryear audit reportand/obierved/a/poiitU/e/unre^rCcted/fUnd/ 
halarice/CnIhe/general/{Und/. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating 
account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the 
fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for selected each account, and observe 
that: 

A liytCng/ofaccounty way not provided/by mana-^emertt. We/ u&ed/the/lUtCng'provLded/ 
in/the/prior year to- select the/accounty for testing/. We/iele<Xed/ovie/month/for testing/ 
and/were/alyie/to-obtcUn/the/recOYiciliaXiony for three/of the/fiAfe/accounZy. We/were/Yiot 
ahle/to-obtainthe/bank/ytaxernentyfor any of the/selected/accounty. 
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a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement closing date 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

h3<yne/ofth^i€le<X:^d/recOY\xUlCatC(yy\^we*^pi^(M'ed/wC(Ki^t\v<rm(yr\X^h^<yf1h^fvlaX&d/ 

itixC&^ne4^tclcriU\g^dat^. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not handle cash, post 
ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

W(me'o/^tlie^Kec<mciltattond'un.clucie<i/evui©nce'o/^^ievCew hy a^iotherpcuty. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been outstanding for 
more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

h}one/ of the^ Showed/ evuience' of re^eo/fdh/ Cnto- sCaZe/ 
mo»i&'tKa4vl2 mor\Xh^. 

Collections 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites^ for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) are prepared and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 
5). 

VUc recfue^t^d/ o/ iCstCn^ of depOiCt for the/ fUccd/ period/ where/ depoitti' for 
cx^^sh/cheidii/vnoYiey ordery (ca&h/). No-U^W(^iuZnnCCCed/to-u&'. We/ohierved/one/depoUC 
Ute/, toxury/hcdi. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation that the listing is 
complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), 
obtain and inspect written pohcies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, 
inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated 
at each collection location such that; 

Mle/rec\ue^Ced/CL/lCtfCiviQ'of coUectCovx/ locccCton&'and/ mono^ement'y repre/iert^atCovx/that 
the/ wa^y covyiplete/. We/ did/ Y\ot receive' a/ liyCXnQ/. We/ ohierved/ two- coilecttmv 
locaXXoviy. Town/HcdX/ond/the/PoiCce/VepartmenC. We/randorvdy iele^Xed/Ovie/coliectCoyv 
locaXXoYX/fyrte'iCXng^and/recfueiCed/wrCttefvpoiCciey and/procedures relaXXng^tO-eriployee/ 
job-duttcy 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

We/ observed/ thcct employees thccC are/ re^on&vble/ for ca^ coUectXony do- not ihare/ 
coy&h/ draweri/reglstery. 
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b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank deposits, unless another 
employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to die deposit. 

hcM^lc/depiyUty 
c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to the general ledger or 

subsidiary ledgers, imless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to 
the deposit. 

^YvCployee^ Ke^ari&ihle^fdr ca^ cu-e^ yuyt yv^ori&ihle^fiyr colLectC(yr\/ 
enTrCei'txr* tKe'gcne^ctZ/le<i^er. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, by 
revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee verifies 
the reconciliation. 

We/yuyt&d/y\o-e^iiployee^C^re<:oric(lCrig^ca^coUectXoriytX)-th^ge^%ercLile<ig€v. 

6. Inquire of management that all employees who have access to cash are covered by a bond or insurance policy for theft. 
VUe'We^not&d/1h^C^i&iM'(M^xx^d(y&yyiotlCsC' 
ip&cifCo evyiplayee^ who- coUccC ca^h/. The/ policy Cndlcatc^ that iKe/ policy iy a "Public/ 
OfpcaaLy^rrorySr OmU^iony' policy. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 imder "Bank Reconciliations" 
above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly 
select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day)^. Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document 
other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, 
receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and; 
We/ randonily ^eLe<XC-d/tWa- dep>o%CC date^ for each/ofthe/ 5 hahhCLccoartCy selected/for 
py-oce<iure/^3. f^tnuevef, mana^eme4^tdid/yuytiubmit(iU/of1h^hcchk/^CatC4ney\tytO-uy. 
We/ only receX^/ed/ hank/ itate^menty fyr 3 of 10 depoiit datey. We/ obtained/ HApportin^ 
dMiAAyiey\tation/for'tkuyie/3 depo^Cty. 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 
We/noted/y-eceXptywe4^iecfuenXXadlypy-e/-nu*nbered/fyr 2 of1kie/3 d^OiCCyte'&ted/. A 
yeeeCptwaynotUy^ced/fbrone/ofthe/depOiCty, he<xuA^1kie/cheoh way mailed/in< 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection documentation to the deposit 
slip. 

We/tvaced/ iecfuentCciUy pre/-nutfihered/ reeeiptyto-the/ depoUt dip for the/ 3 depodty 
teyted/wCthoute^ccepCtOYu. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 
porthe/3 depoyCtyteyted^ we/traced/the/depoyCtdCptotcd/to-the/depoyitperthe/hank/ 

ytat&inent and/noted/no-e-iccepCiony 
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d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within one week if 
the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less than $100). 

We/ noted/ 2 of 3 depOiCty te&ted/ were/ depOiCCed/ one/ day of coU-ectton. One/ 
deposit way a/(dxe<d<:/that way rnaCled/Cni The/receipt dat^ way not" doxaunev\ted/. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 
We/noted/cCii3 depoiCCytested/a^eed/to-the/genercd/ledger. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is 
complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

We/ were/ unable/ to- obtain/ a liytvn^ of locatCony that proeeyy paymenty for the/ fUcaU 
period/. 3cf/&edyon/OvLrpa^e^erCence/wCth/'d\e/entCty, we/concduded/thatthere/wayovdy 
one/locaXXont. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-payroll purchasing and 
payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written 
policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated 
such that: 

We/ were/ unable/ to- obtain/ a lUCin^ of thoie/ employeey CnNob/ed/ with/ non-payrM' 
purchasing/ and/ payment functiony. Ttrrm past etiperCence/, we/ prepared/ a list. We-
obtained/an/underitanding'ofjob-dutLey fi^oni/discussion/wCth/the/employeey. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and placing an 
order/making the purchase. 

We/ noted/ at least two employeey are/ CnNobued/ in urJiXtaXln/g' a purchase/ request, 
approving/the/purchase/, and/placing/anorder/mdkXng/the/purchase/. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

We/noted/OtleasttXuoewiployeeya^irwob/ed/inprotxssing/and/approving/paymenjCy 
tovendory. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor files, unless another 
employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

We/ noted/the/employee/ responsible/for processing/paymenty iy able/to add/modify 
vendor filey, and/there/iy no other employee/responsible/for periodically reviewing/ 
changeyto vendor filey 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed checks to an 
employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

We/noted/the/employee/responsible/for signing/(hecky givey those/cheeky hack/to-the/ 
employee/ responsible fyr processing/payvnentyto-he mailed/. 
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10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction population (excluding 
cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly 
select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction and: 

frcmv QuCck3oxyky, we/ o/ cheoh detuU/ e^cdudCvig^ payroU/ trcLn^cLctUmy ayid/ 

recfue^t^d/ mano-^emenf ^lepre&entZitttm/ that the/ ICitCng/ U" coniplete/. We/ rayidavydy 
^elected/ 5 cItAirufie+n^ntV {br a^nd/ ohtaCned/ a^/atiahle/ ciocu^nenttUtorv: 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

Four oiitoffOife/ dtibu^ie^ynevity matched/the/ related/ CvwaCce/. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initiaFdate, electronic logging) of segregation 
of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Four ouT of fxAfe/ £it4^>urAemenCF wer&' not nxpported/ hy dtrcumentatCovx/ of proper 
ie^egatLAyn/ofdutCe^. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards (cards) for the fiscal 
period, including the card nmnbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain 
management's representation diat the listing is complete. 

We/were/iArxdyle/to-o^^tUr/from/mara.^ementa^lCstLr^ofciU/actOi^e/credCtcard^, harh 
debetccwdy, fuebcardy, and/p-cardy (cardy)for'the/{i&cal/pe*'Cod/. We/e^orted/o/report 
ofe^e4^&eybyverdxyr{rornthe/accour\tCng^yyftXucu'e<. We^idey\ttfted/a/WalAnartaccount 
hut were/ unahle/ttr determine/ how many cardywere/ctCtached/tO-the/CLCcoiA^xt. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were used during the 
fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly 
select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

We/ieletted/Ofxe/Walmart^tUte^nertoAxd/obtUined/co^allable/doxxunertatCoyu. 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monflily statement or combined statement and supporting documentation (e.g., 
original receipts for crediFdebit card purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and 
approved, in writing, by someone other than the authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain 
the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not 
be reported.)] 

Wcdid/notob^erve/ary e^ide^^ice/Xh^ctlh^stater^ertard/iupportCng'doccunertiXtCoYV 
\uay re\fCe\ued/ ard/ approved/. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 
We/noted/no-fLrayice^dhar^eyar late^feey onthe/ ̂ tatemert iele<Xed<. 
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13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 
transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the 
transactions (i.e. each card should have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe that it is supported 
by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the 
business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of die individuals participating in meals (for meal ch^ges only). 

Wo'selected/cCU/lO 
One/otAfoflO tra^xicuXX^ynywai'yxxytiuppor't&d/'by CCe^nC^ed/receipty 
^CghfoflO trcMXicuXuyrxA'Mfere^not'yAppcnt&d/hy dxycume'VxXixCCoTVofthe/hu.iiyxeii'pLupoie/. 
N<yne/<yfth^tr(M^icuXt4yriyt^>St^d/were^chcu'^ey{br m&aZy 

Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal period and 
management's representation diat the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the 
related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

M)e/\j&re/ uncMe^tir ohtUi4^fhy}ivmcLna,geine^a^lCMng^ofa^ty'(Vt/el' a^id/trci^tel'-related/ 
expend yelvnhtwiem&yxty fUccd/ period/ arxd/ mono.gement'i' repr&ieyxtixCCoYX/ 
tht^th^lC&CX^ng^or g€4^xer(^led.ger CycortipleX^. We/creccC^d/a/U^ frorivthe/check/detOyCi 
Crx/ the/ accounCtng^ ioftxuare/ (Mxd/ randorvdy ieiecCed/ 5 relrvdruricmerXy. We^ ohtU'Cned/ 
avatUtble/dociunerxtixCXoru 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established either by the State of Louisiana 
or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.govl. 

J^our ouZ of fi^e/ye^^mbiATiemerty were/hcLied/arx/per dierv rccCe^tkiccC did/agree/, or 
come/Cyx/helow omotAA^xXyiethy Ihe/livxXXed/StiUe^Q&nertd/ServCce^Ad/mCnUtyatiOYXi 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized receipt that 
identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Three/ retmbuf^emenCV \oere/ haied/ otx/ CLCtUcd/ co^ty ard/ were/ supported/ hy orCgCrxxd/ 
itemized/receipty 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for meal charges, 
observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) and other documentation 
required by written policy (procedure #lh). 

We/ noted/ eadh/ relihburiemert' w<xy HApported/ hy docAAAney\Z3xCiOYX/ of the/ 

htL^irxe^y/piAhUc/piATpOie/, arxd/meed/charges reCvvihuried/dXd/covxXid^documerxXicCiorx/ 
of the/ irxdX^fidAAodyparCCcipativx^. 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person receiving 
reimbursement. 
We/iMyCed/eoxh/reOmhurhewierX: way reA\fiewed/arxd/approved^ Cvx/writing, hy yymeovxe/ 
other thar/the/peryyrx/ rece^irx/^the/ reiwChuryemerJC. 
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Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and supplies, leases, and 
construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use an 
equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and; 

We^dCdyvuytreKxOi^e^cL^lCitX'n^. We're<xi\fe^c^i^ofvarC(yuyc<>ritraA:ty't3xat\ue^uied/a^1he/ 
We^r(M\ciornXy selected/5 cOY\tracti'tiy-ti^. 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited quotes or bids, 
advertised), if required by law. 

We^dld/y\xytCdevitClyav\y c<mrmc£Ft>vcrur Acwtiple'tKarw6f'e'H^ecC't&-tKe'L(>u£4uma/ 
PublUy3Cd/ Law. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law (e.g. Lawrason Act, 
Home Rule Charter). 

We^did/yiotLde¥\XXfyav\y coY^ZractyCn/Ou^iaii^le/that:were^itd^'e<X:tiTth^LotU^iana/ 

PiMCo3Cd/ Law. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms provided for such an 
amendment. 

Wc not&d/ no- confrocCF Cwthe^ iOAfiple/thaf xuere^am&nded/. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the supporting invoice, agree 
the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions 
of the contract. 

We^ra4^d4yvti2^ iele<^e<^or\£/pa^mei^from/1he^fv&c<d/perC(yd/ibr&ach/of'the/5 cOY\XyacCi', 
obtaX4^i6d/th^iupportU^CiVi^<ytce^, coyyjpcwed/tKe- Vcrthe^ coyXtrcLctte^m^, and/ 
corvtpared/ the/ Uvt/oice^ and/ rehxCed/ payment txr the/ term^ and/ covidXtuyyx^ of the/ 
contract. Three/ Crwovc&y and/ related/ paymenty dCd/ not appear tXr agree/ to- the/ 
contract termy. 

Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid salaries and persoimel files, and agree paid 
salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the persormel files. 

Managenient did/not ytbrnAt a/liifCing'to-uy. We/prepared/a/lUtfronvthe/accounting' 
yyftware/. We/ randorvdy ielected/ flAte/ employees and/ obtained/ the/ related/ 
dtKumentatCon. We/agreed/the/patd/rat&yto-the/authori/^fed/rateyfor odX/pA/e/enCployeey. 

17. Randomly select one pay period diuing the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials selected under #16 above, obtain 
attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

We/ randomly selected/ one/ pay period/ during- the/ fv&cal/ period/ and/ obtained/ the/ 
a^adolyle/dociMnentatiOfvfor the/pay period/. 
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a) Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., vacation, sick, 
compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and does not document his/her 
attendance and leave. However, if the elected official is earning leave according to policy and/or contract, the official 
should document his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

We'ohie*^/ed/thcit{bvu' (n^tcrffiAfe/ewCp\oye&^dociA^nev\Xje>d/^rieir daily atCe^^dance/ond/ 
leov&c One^ofth^^iele<X:^d/e*yiployee^\uai' yiotevyiployed/du^'Cn^'the/t^Mng^peruyd/. 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

We^obierved/the^iUpe*^Ciory(^pnyv(^{brth*'ee^oftkie^fbvu' &mployeei: 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken dining the pay period is reflected in Ihe entity's cumulative leave records. 

We'Cnipe^ed/Xhe^lea\fe'recordyfiyrthe/&niployee^te'&t^d< 77\ef*e/wa4'm>-leave' 
a<x^iA£^dtM'Ly\^thje/perCod/. 

18. Obtain a listing of those employees/officials that received termination payments during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees/officials, obtain related documentation of the 
hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment calculations, agree the hours to the employee/officials' 
cumulate leave records, and agree the pay rates to the employee/officials' authorized pay rates in the employee/officials' 
personnel files. 

did/ vuytprcrvCde/ a/ of ewcployee^ receiVCn^tsrmmotwnvpay 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement contributions, healdi 
insurance premiums, and workers' compensation premiums have been paid, and associated forms have been filed, by 
required deadlines. 

M)e/ did/ not obtain/ a/ S&e/ the/ audCtory report on/ the/ {tnancial/ 
^tate^nenty. 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials fiom procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" above' obtain ethics 
documentation from management, and: 

)A)e/ obtcUned/ llxe/ eXhicy dotM^rventatCon/ from/ manx^'^emont for the/ /tv©' ieZect^db 
employee^offtciaiy. 

a. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics training during the 
fiscal period. 

We^obierved/two-ofthe/fi^t/e/ employeey did/ nothoa/e/ documentaCCor\/fbr the/ one/-hour 
ethicy traini/n^. We/ observed/ that training/ for another two- out of fxAfe/ employeey 
occarred/after thiyfticcd/year end/. 
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b. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official attested through signature verification that he or 
she has read the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 

We/ did/ not ohierve/ cwoy documcfitetturn' de^novi^rccCCng/ eac?v e^iiphyyee/offtcCcd/ 
verCfled/lh^ou.gh/iCgyiatiu'e/'tixathe/Ot' policy. 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval 
was obtained for each bond/note issued. 

MtM^agefne^^dld/notprovCde/o/lCytCn^. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing 
is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve 
balance and payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants. 

MayiO'ge^vie^dXd/nxytpy'OVide/a/lCittn^. We/ielect&d/one/hond/tcrte^hcfy&ed/OYX/py'Coryeayr 
dcUZx/. We/Cn^e<X:ed/Xh£/dehtcove^\cfA^ty(Mxd/ohti:!U4^ied/the/yAppovtL4xg/dxyc{Myi£4^XixtCoy\/. 
On£/paymey\t\ua^Cyiued/t\uo-dayylate/ The/yeierve/favidi d^re<:icc(Xor\yfand/, and/ihxyrt-
lOi/ed/o&^et fund/a*^{t4Uy funded/. U4^]U^\^fUnd/\uay not ftdly funded/. 

Other 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that 
the entity reported the misappropriation{s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the 
entity is domiciled. 

Manag-eme4^t did/notprovCd^alCMng/ofmUccppyt)py'CatCor\y. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 concerning the 
reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

We/obierved/the/recfulred/notCce/poyt&d/atthe/caihCeyywCndoxu Cn/Tovjn/Ha^ayxueU/ 
ci^(m'tKe'"<5(n/6f*Kvmetif' tah-ofthe/Toxun/yxuehiit^. 

Exceptions 
We/ did/ Y\ot obtain/ mana^e^m&nty r^re'ientatCony. See/ the/ auditory report on/ the/ 
fvnanclcd/ ^Catementy. We/ C&^ued/ a dt&<daCrner of opinion/ heeau&e/ \ue/ cannot accept 
manage^nent'y repre&entationy. 

WrCtten/Poileie^and/procedAMe^ ' Sorne/policle^ha^e/notheen/adopt^d/and/iinplemented/. 
Sorne/poiicie^ do-not contain/aZi of the/iugge-Sted/elenienty. 

"board/ or pi/nance/ Committee/ - We/ did/ not receOi^e/ minut&y for aXL meetingy. We/ did/ not 
obierve/e^Cdence/thatthe^board/wayrecel^/Cng/or re^/CewCng/hudgettOactUal/comparCsony. 
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Weeded/ 
not receCve' iome^ of the' requeued/ bcmfc/ K6c<mc^ltciCu>n4' or accounts. hJone' of the/ 
injected/ hc^4^k/ reooncilCatConi' were^prepcwed/ wCthCtvtWo- months of the' related/ iCixCeme/nC 
(doU^^g'iCcUeme4^ity. None'ofXhe/L4\^e<Xed/re(xn^icilCccCiori&'included/e\fCdience/that another 
party reA/Cewed/ the/ re<:oncCUaXXon&' or that itale/ CCetny were/ re-ie<xrched/. 

CoUe<XCon^'Managementdid/notpro^^id^o/U^ofdepoiCtiiXe^or coUectCon/loeatConA: We/ 
nxyted/no-documented/reconcCUatConof receCptyto-Xhe'general/ledger. We/dCd/notreceO^e/ 
iome/ofthe'hank/itxtementy, ^we/were'unalyle/to-complete'all/of the/procedurei'. Keceipt 
date^ arc not doc4Amented/when'paymenty are/mailed/Cn. 

Non/-PayroU/VCiburhement^ - Manoi^ement did/Y\otiuhmlta/lisit of dtdytArcement locaXioni' 
or a/ U^fCin^ of employees irwol^/ed/ wCth/ nonpayroU/ purchasing' and/ payment functions'. 
The/employee reSponMldc for processing pay mentyCS'aide to-add/modify vendor filey Wc 
noted/¥\o-employee/or officlcd/that is're^onsildcfor re/\fie^uing/changes-to-vendor fCieS'. the 
employee ye^onsildefyr processing'payments CS' also- te^onsilde for mailing/checks^ after 
they are signed/. Oneoutof fL^edCshursementy did/not match/the related/inMyvce/support. 
porfyuroutoffiA/edldyursementy, Ihe support did/not include evidence of documentation/ 
of proper segregation'of dutiey 

Credit Cards/Vehit Cards/puel/ Cards/P-Cards' - Management did/ not submit a/ listing/ of 
cardy. ThesCatementweCnSpected/dld/not include any evidence that the statement and/ 
supporting/ documentation' waS' reuCewed/ and/ approved/. O ne out of ten/ transactions' orv 
the statement ways'not supported/hy Ctemlged/receipts: ^ight out often/transactions'did/not 
include documentation/of thehusiness'purpose. 

Travel/ and/ travel/-related/ ^)ipense Kelmhursements - Management did/ not sulymlt a 
listing'. 

Contracts ' Management did/not suhmlt aUsting'. Three invoices'did/not appear to-agree 
to- the contract terms. 

Payroll/ and/ Personnel/ - The supervisor's' approval/ waS' not documented/ for one of four 
emphyyeestested/. Management did/¥\ot provide agisting'of tervvUnation/paymentS'. 

ethics - for two- out of five employees', no- documentation/ waS' provided/ for training'. 
Training'for two-out of five employees'wav completed/after thlS'ft/Scal/year. Management 
did/ not submit any documentation/ that employees/offtcCalS' verified/ through/ signature 
thatthey had/read/the entity'sethics'pollcy. 

Vebt Service - Management did/ not provide the listings: One debt service payment was 
issued/two-days late. The sinklng/fund/was not fully funded/. 

other - Managementdld/notprovideaUsting/ofvnisapprOpriations. 
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Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Independent Accountant's Report on SAUPs - 2018 

Management's Response 
Ma^ia-^emenTo/^tKe'TcnvKV Li'©vaZuottn^tKe^ re^uZti'cmd/WLIZ/act'OA'cieemeii/KV6C€44CM^. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an 
opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would 
have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, and 
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on conhol or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for 
any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

BOSCH & STATHAM, LLC 

Ruston, Louisiana 
April 2, 2020 
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Mayor Leslie Thompson 
Ph: 318-259-2385 
Fax:318-259-4177 

Town of Jonesboro 
P.O. Box 610 

128 Allen Avenue 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 71251 

March 27, 2020 

To whom it may concern: 

Attached hereto are the Town of Jonesboro' Management's Responses to the 2017 -2018 
Audit findings. 

Thank you, 

Mayor L. Thompson 

"This institution is an equal opportunity provider" 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Managements Response to 2017-2018 Audit Findings 

1. 2018-001 Cash Receipt Books Not Properly Maintained 
We have taken the following measures to rectify the findings: 

• Will begin using pre-numbered receipt books for deposits 
• Will keep log of what receipt books are issued to whom 

2. 2018-002 Liability for Customer Deposits Exceeds Restricted Cash 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• Deposit amount requirements change periodically. One clerk is now assigned to 
look back at all customers deposits over the years to determine amount of deposit 
which should be in account. Once this is completed, we will calculate all 
customer deposits and separate them from the deposit accounts to be held in a 
restricted account. Funds will be transferred to match the liability as soon as 
realistically possible. 

3. 2018-003 Utility Fund Accounts Receivable Includes Bad Debts 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• All bad debts have been cleared up. 

• An in-depth discussion seeking council approval and detailing the need to 
purchase more accurate electronic meters has been held at several council 
meetings. Awaiting approval to move forward. 

• At least 80% of the current meters are faulty (not working) or cannot be located. 
To more accurately bill customers, we certainly need to implement the new 
electronic metering system. 

• The utility supervisor has been assigned the task of identifying outstanding debts. 

• We are reviewing the turn off and refund policy as it relates to customer deposits 
and how to handle refunds. Some considerations are: 

o Engaging a debt collection agency to handle unpaid bills 
o When turned off for non-payment, after 30 days, customer will be 

refunded any remaining balance of deposit after having been applied to 
balance due. This process will require new deposit and starting as new 
customer should they want to turn services back on and will eliminate bad 
debts being carried on the books. Adjustment entries will be recorded in 
each account determined uncollectible. 

4. 2018-004 Non-compliance with Public Bid Law 

• Will put bids for regular services and items (gasoline) on the council's agenda in 
May of each year, send items out for bid through the approved bid process and 
vote on bids in the annual June council meeting. This will insure that all items 
which are or should be bided annually will not be overlooked and that the Town is 
in step with LRS 38:2212.1. 
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5. 2018-005 Failure in Internal Control Over Purchasing 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• In August of 2020, a Compliance Officer was hired to oversee the purchase 
process. 

• A requisition is required before purchases are made and purchase orders are 
required on all purchases. 

• Quarterly staff meetings are scheduled to reinforce purpose of policy and to 
prepare staff for audit readiness. 

6. 2018-006 Customer Refunds Not Reflected in Billing System 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• Hired person in March 2020 to be responsible for insuring customer refunds are 
properly handled and put into the billing system timely. This insures all 
information is properly input into the system in a timely manner. We are going 
back to 2014 (as recommended) in an effort to clean up or to minimalize this 
issue. 

7. 2018-007 Overtime Pay 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• Will hire more qualified part time personnel as needed in effort to reduce 
overtime. 

• All overtime is required to have a documented need and employees will be rotated 
to work overtime. 

8. 2018-008 Utility Billing Procedures 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• Seeking council approval to order new electronic meters which will make it 
possible to read ALL meters in the system. 

• The third party biller has been notified of when to mail bills so customers will 
receive them timely. 

• Several council meetings have had discussions on the necessity of purchasing 
electronic meters as current meters are not working. Council's approval is needed 
to purchase new meters which will increase revenues (when proper readings are 
taken) and being removed from non-compliance list is necessary to receive 
needed funding for procurement. 

• Most of the current meters are not working and/or are unable to be located. 
9. 2018-009 Timekeeping Procedures 

The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• Supervisor is signing off on all time sheets before submitting for payment. 
• All overtime is being approved before submitting for payment. 

• No payroll is being processed without proper documentation. 
10. 2018-010 Non-Complimice with Budget Act 
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The Town of Jonesboro has adopted a budget and procedure policy this year and will 
consult Town's attorney going forward to insure budget is created within confines 
of/compliance with Budget Act. 

11. 2018-011 Failure to Publish Minutes 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• After an in-depth discussion with Town's Attorney, all minutes are now being 
published within the time constraints required by law. 

12. 2018-012 Late Filing of Police Supplemental Pay Reports 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• Town Clerk is handling supplemental pay for all departments. Reports are being 
submitted timely and copies of submissions maintained in office. 

• A Supplemental Pay Policy has been drafted and will be presented to counsel for 
adoption in May, 2020 to insure compliance and timeliness. 

13. 2018-013 Financial Statements Issued After Due Date 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 
We rely on an external CPA firm to supply us with financial statements. We are working 
diligently with them to insure that financial documents provided are both timely and 
accurate as required for reports, copies to council members and other for other reasons 
we may need them. 

14. 2018-014 Financial Statements not Provided to Board of Aldermen 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 
We have engaged an external CPA firm to supply us with monthly financial statements. 
We are working diligently with them to insure that financial documents are provided both 
timely and accurately as required for reports, copies to council members, and other 
reasons we might need them. 

15. 2018-015 Failure in Multiple Elements of Internal Control 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• The lines of communication are open with the following chain of command: 
Mayor, Mayor's Assistant, Clerk, Tax Collector, Public Works Director, and Fire 
Chief. All are available to problem solve, answer questions and trouble shoot as 
necessary. 

• Mayor's assistant will stand in on the rare occasion the Mayor is unavailable. 

• Department Head Meetings are held every Monday to discuss meaningful ways of 
moving the Town forward and keeping everyone abreast of critical information 
for proper management of the Town's business. 

• All staff is conscientious of and performing duties for which they were hired and 
often volunteer to assist in other areas when feasible or necessary as long as this 
does not violate policy. 

• The miscellaneous line item is being eliminated from the budget in all categories. 
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• Completion of bank reconciliations has been turned over to the external CPA 
firm. 

• Deposits are being completed timely, (on a daily basis) and transactions are 
posted daily or as they occur. 

• The Fire Ad Valorem and Utility Funds will become a budget line item in an 
effort to reduce the possibility of overdraft. 

• All staff in the current administration is committed to being fully compliant and 
cooperative with auditors. 

• Will contact extemal CPA firm biannually to request observance of internal 
controls and seek recommendations for implementation of improvements in any 
areas deemed necessary. 

16. 2018-016 Lack of Segregation of Duties in Collections 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• All monies are currently being collected by cashiers. 
Town Clerk reconciles all deposits with the exception of the Police Department. We will 
be talking to the Town Council about bringing the Police Department collections back to 
City Hall. 

17. 2018-017 Utility Accounts of Employees and Officials Paid Late 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• Town employees and officials are fully expected to be treated as every other 
customer in the Customer Billing System of the Town. There are no employee 
accounts which fall outside of the current policy on payments and disconnection 
for non-payments. 

18. 2018-018 Employee Paid as Contract Labor 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• No employee is allowed to work in a contractual capacity while still employed or 
within two (2) years of separation from employment. This is the policy of the 
current administration which is in keeping with LRS 42:1121 

19. 2018-019 Certificate of Deposit Cashed Without Board of Aldermen Approval 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• The Town is currently requesting regular financial statements indicating fund 
balances in an effort to prevent overspending. Strict adherence to the policy and 
procedure for liquidating CD's is being observed and should not be done without 
Board of Aldermen approval. 

20. 2018-020 Louisiana Compliance Questionnaire Not Properly Executed 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• We will insure timely response to the questionnaire moving forward and comply 
with proper signatures and resolution. 

21. 2018-021 Board Meeting Minutes Were not Properly Prepared of Retained 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 
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• Board minutes are being published timely in the Town's Journal. 
• Full copies of minutes are placed in the minute books and checked for accuracy. 

• All signatures are secured on the document as required. 
• There are minutes filed in the minute book for all Town Council Meetings of the 

current administration with proper seals and signatures. 
22. 2018-022 Failure to Properly Prepare Bank Reconciliations and Failure to Submit to the 

Auditor, Records Including Bank Statements and Bank Reconciliations 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• We have hired an outside CPA firm, (the same firm that was appointed as Fiscal 
Administrator for the Town) who is doing monthly reconciliations. 

• All requests from the auditors will be responded to in a timely manner either by 
the CPA or the Town Clerk. 

23. 2018-023 Failure to Provide Grant Files to the Auditor 
The following measures have been or are being implemented: 

• Files are organized and filed in a manner which makes them easy to locate. 

• Records requested by the Auditor will be provided timely. 
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Mayor Leslie Thompson 
Ph: 318-259-2385 
Fax:318-259-4177 

Town of Jonesboro 
P.O. Box 610 

128 Allen Avenue 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 71251 

May 7,2020 

To whom it may concern: RE: SAUP Response 

We will take the auditor's comments under advisement and take action as deemed necessary 

Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Mayor Leslie Thompson 
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